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PROCEEDINGS

MR. GRAY: VWe will resume.
MR. ROBB: Mr. Chairman, I have two questions 1
would like to ask.
MR. GRAY: 1 suggest you proceed.
Whereupon,
LUIS WALTER ALVAREZ
the witness on the stand at the time of taking the recess
resumed the stand and testified further as follows: |
DIRECT EXAMINATION (Cont.)
BY MR. ROBB:

Q Dr. Alvarez, your diary showed, and you testified
that you talked to various individuals about your plan and the
plans of others for the development of the thermonuclear
weapon in early October 1949, is that right?

A Yes, sir.

Q At that time these individuals were enthusiastic
for going ahead with it, is that right?

A That was my very strong impression.

Q To your knowledge, were those conversations in
advance of any talks that these people had with Dr. Oppenheimer?

A I think that is so, sir. I am sure it is so in
the case of Dr. Serber. I am quite sure in the case of Drs.

DuBridge and Bacher, and also in the case of Dr. Rabi.

Q Subsequently these people changed their views, is
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that right?

A Quite drastically, yes.

Q Did you learn at.that time whether in the interim

' they had talked to Dr. Oppenheimer?

A I am sure that in the interim they talked with Dr.

Oppenheimer, because the interim extends until now.
MR. ROBB: That is all I care to ask on direct, Mr.
Chairman.
MR. GRAY: Mr, Silverman.
CROSS EXAMINATTGN
BY MR. SILVERMAN:
Q Self evidently these people have talked to a lot of
. other people?

A That is absolutely right.

Q Dr. Alvarez, when you came east with Dr. Lawrence
in the trip of which you kept a diary, am I correct in my
understanding that the specific thing you were trying to
promote for want of a better word, or push, was a reactor pile
that would produce excess neutrons?

A That is right, sir.

Q Did the Commission thereafter build dr cause to be
‘ built a reactor to produce excess neutrons?
A There are some reactors of that general class now

under construction at Savannah River, yes.

Q Is that Savannah River reactor not in operation at all?
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A I don't know. I have no knowledge of this except

what I read in the paper. I believe, however, they have not
been turned on. That is my 1mpressbn.l This can be checked
easily.

Q Do you know whether the reactor at Savannah River
was based largely on Mr. Zinn's design?

A I haven't really any idea, sir. I would assume that
his advice was taken, but I believe that the reactors were
designed by the engineers of the duPont company, and the only
consultant that I know of personally employed by them was Dr.
John Wheeler, who was their consultant on the Hanford Pile
designed during the war. I think it was pretty much of a
company design job, rather than an AEC design.

Q Do you know designs for reactors to produce excess
neutrons were fairly well along in October of 1949?

A The files of the AEC were bulging with designs
for reactors; this is jusf the point that I made. There were
designs by the gallon, but no piles.

Q Do you know whether the Savannah River pile more
n early followed the designs that Mr. Zinn had participated
in making, and he was enthusiastic about than the Chalk River
piie or something based on it?

A My impression is that Mr. Zinn believed strongly
that the -piles of the future to give excess neutrons should

be enriched uranium piles of the type now in operation at ARCO,
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Idaho. Zinn has believed strongly in the small enriched piles
as against the Savannah River design, which is along the broad
general lines of the Canadian pile.

Q You think the Savannah River pile is along the
broad general lines of the Canadian pile?

A I have never seen its design, but it is a heavy
water moderated pile, using natural uranium, which is
certainly what the Canadian pile is, and very definitely
different from the many designs which Dr. Zinn had to do with
and eventually lmas constructed. |

Q Are you aware that the GAC did in fact recommend
going ahead with the Savannah River project?

A Oh, yes, I am quite aware of that. I would be
interested in the date wen that project was supported.

Q You don't know the date?

A I don't know the date. I know, hewever, it was after
the Presiéential directive, of course.

(ol Do you know that the GAC had been recommending a
production facility that would produce excess neutrons for
well over a year before the President's directive?

A I knew that everyone was in favor of piles but
nonetheless no piles got built.

() The GAC was an advisorycommittee.

A Yes, it was.

Q And it advised that such piles be built?



2712

A I have never seen their recommendation, sir, so I
don't know, but being in favor of piles is like being against
sin. I think everyone is for piles, but nénetheless none got
built. .

Q But it was not the GAC's job to build them.

A That is true, yes.

Q Do you know what the Savannah River pile cost?

A I would guess it was in the neighborhood of one and
a half million dollars, just from what I see in the newspapers.

Q Andwho built the pile?

A The duPont cowpany.

Q Do you think that the Atomic Energy Commission was
perhaps justified in entrusting the building of a billion
and a half dollar project to the duPont cémpany rather than
to your group?

A Oh, absolutely. They had tremendous competence in
the field, and we ha& no competence whatsoever in pile design.
The only thng we had to offer to the Commission was the
ability to build things rapidly in the scientific field.

This was a demonstrated capacity of the Radiation Laboratory.

Q The duPont company had that capacity, too?

A Yes, to an even greater wxtent than we did, obviously.

Q And the duPont company had experience in building
piles?

A Yes, sir.
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Q And you didn't?

A That is right. The right decision was certainly
made there. The duPont company was certainly better equipped
to build piles thah we were. There is no question about that.

A Are you sure that the development of the Sav#nnah
River project was not carried at Argonne under Zinn?

A I have no knowledge of this, but looking at the
pile in the broad sense, I would say it doesn't look like a
Zinn pile, and the way that an architect would look at»a
building and say this was not designed by sﬁch and .such an
architect.

Q It would surprise you to learn that that development
was carried out at Argonne under Zinn?

A It would not surprise me particularly. I would
guess that it wag,not a development of Zinn, but rather of
,fduPoht. -This'is purely a guess.

4VQ- | Tﬁat would be purely a guess.
I would like now to turn to the discussions in
the Panel -- I think perhaps you called it the Panel on Long
Rangeyplanning, some thing like that.

A I believe that was the official name.

Q I believe you called it that. I am not sure.

It may have been referred to at other times as the Military
Objectives Committee.

A Perhaps it was.
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Q In December 1950, you referred to a statement by

Dr. Oppenheimer somewhat to the effect that we all agree

that the hydrogen bomb program should be stopped. If we did
this and recommended it, it would cause too much disruption at
Los Alamos.

A That is right.

Q And let it go on and the project would die when the
Greenhouse tests failed, as Dr. Oppenheimer expected them to.
Is that substantially correct?

A That is substantially the way I remember it, yes.

Q I would like you to turn to the first part of that
sta tement that we all agree fhat the hydrogen bomb program
should be stopped. 1 want to ask you wheyher it is possible
that what Dr. Oppenheimer said was that "We all agree that
the hydrogen bomb program does not look very hopeful now."

A lo,‘I am quite sure. I remember it the other way.

It was such a startling statement to me that it is indelibly
in my mind. ‘I dn't think I could be mistaken on that.

Q You of course were a representative of the ether view?

A That is right.

Q And when Dr. Oppenheimer said that "We all agree
that the hydrogen bomb program should be stopped", did you as
.a member of the panel say, '"We don't all agree; I don't."

A I didn't interrupt him until he finished his

statement at the end of which time, as he pointed out, he said
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he was not going to stop it, and I pointed out since he said
he was not going to stop it, there seemed to be no point in
arguing abbut it.

o Butyou did not correct him and way "'We do not all
agree."

A No. I am sure from what I have said inthis hearing
you wauld know that I did not agree.

Q It is sometimes necessary on cross examination to
emphasize points.

A Very well, sir. Had he stopped his statement with
that first sentence, I am sure that I would ha\}e dissented
vigorously.

Q Was it the fact that everybody there agreed that
at that time the hydrogen bomb program did not look very
hopeful?

A I don't know whether everyone did agree on that.

A Did you think at that time that the hydrogen bomb
program did not look very hopeful?

A I thought it looked exceedingly hopeful. Again 1
can only see it through the eyes of people like Hdward Teller,
who have the technical competence, who know the details of the
program. I am not a theoretical physicist. All I can do is
basé my judgment on people in whom I have great scientific
trust.

Q Wasn't everybody pretty depressed in December 19507
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A No. I certainly didn't sense that at all, but I

was not At Los Alaﬁos. I did not know that things were going
very badly. Perhaps they were, 1 don't know. I was notaware
of the fact that people were depressed.

Q And you had not heard from other people working on
the project in December of 1950 that things didn't look so good?

A I had heard that the requirements for tritium had
temporarily taken a turn towards larger quantities being
required. But I had seen the requirements gouw and down and
up and down on many occasions, and this did not disturb me at
all.

Q You had not heard at the time that this was a
temporary turp,that it turned out to be temporary?

A I really couldn't say positively one way or the other.

¢ - Did the others at the meeting agree that the hydrogen
bomb program did not look hopeful?

A I can't recall. I do know that Dr. Lauritsen
apparently had strong reasons, probably sme of a moral nature
for not wanting the hydrogen bomb. I do know that Dr.
Lauritsen's closest associate, Dr. William Fowler, had been
giving lectures on the radio against the hydrogen bomb. I
‘'was in Pasadena staying with Dr. Bacher one night whenvI was
giving a lecture at Cal Tech, and at a dinner party that night
all I heard was stories about why you should not have hydrogen

bombs, and the fact that the members of the staff at Cal Tech
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were giving public lecynres and talking on the radio against
the hydrogen bomb., I thought Dr. Lauritsen wanted no part
of the hydrogen bomb.

MR. GRAY: 1In what period of time was this?

THE WIINESS: This was at the time of the panel at
the end of 1950.

BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q Before arafter the Panel, would you say?

A During that general period. I could not pinpoint
the date precisely. |

Q Did Dr. Lauritsen express ay views at this panel
meeting as to either whether the hydrogen bomb program should
be stopped or as to its feasibilify?

A I discussed the program with him on a number of
occasions and I always got the impression that he thought that
the small weapons program and the‘hydrogen boub were mutually
exclusive- The country could not do both of them at the same
time; since he had strong reasons for desiring a small weapons
program, he felt that the hydrogen bomb projram should not go
ahead.

Q Did the report the panel filed say that the small
weapons'program and the hydrogen bomb program were mutually
éxclusive? |

A Not in exactly those words, but it certainly pointed

ouit that the hydrogen bomb program was taking manpower aml
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effort of the Los Alamos laboratory away from the small weapons
program and the panel recommended that it not do so in the
future.

Q And you signed that report?

A I signed the report, and as 1 have said, I am sorry
I signed it. |

Q Do you ®call whether Dr. Lauritsen at the panel
said anything about the outlook for feasibility of the hydrogen
b omb?

A Whether Dr. Lauritsen said that it was feasible or
not feasible would have made no impression on me, because Dr.
Lauritsen like myself wam not entitled to scientific opinion.
Neither he nor I have enough knowléedge in this field to form
an opinion ourselves.

Q And you do not recall whether he said anything about it?

A No, but had he said so, it would lwe made no
1mpr§ssion on me.

Q Did Dr. Bacher say anything about what the outlook
was at the panel for the feasibility of the hydrogen bomb
program?

A Again, I can't recall for the same reason. .Dr.

Bacher was not entitled to an opinion, nor am I.
Q Did Admiral Parsons express a view on that subject?
A I think Admiral Parsons stayed very neutral throughout

the whole thing. He was a good naval officer, and I don't
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think that he was trying to inject his own personality into
this thing.
Q Did General McCormack express a view?
A I don't believe so. I don't know.
Q So that when Dr. Oppenheimer said, "We all agree",
they all just sat?
A Yes. No one commented on this at all. That is to
the best of my recollection.
Q I understand you a?e testifying from your
recollection, sir.. |
I think you said that Dr. Oppenheimer 1ndicéted
that he thought that the Greenhouse tests would fail.
A Yes.
Q Just what does that mean?
A That no thermonuclear reaction would take place in
the Greenhouse test explosive device. In order for a
thermonuclear reaction to take place, very high temperatures
must be reached, as you know. I think that Dr. Oppenheimer
felt that those high temperatures would not be reached, if you
can permit me to read his mind.
Q I would rather you tell us what he said.
A I have already told you what he said.
MR. ROBB: Mr. Chairﬁan, everyb;dy else is reading
Dy. Oppenheimer's mind. |
MR. GRAY: The Chair will say that there has been a

parade of witnesses here who testified on their ittimate
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knowledge of Dr. Oppenheimer, and that they would know

exactly what his reaction would be in any particular situation.
I do not thinkthis witness shouldbe denied an opportunity to
make his own guess about what Dr. Oppenhéimer might think.

MR. SILVERMAN: I do not wish to cut a witness off.

I would point out between opinion evidence testimony as to a
man's character and evidence as to what a man was thinking about
a xcientific project.

MR. GRAY: I will ask you, Mr. Silverman, if you have
not asked witnesses in this proceeding what did Dr. Oppenheimer
think about so and so.

MR. SILVERMAN: I would certainly not be prepared to
say --

MR. GRAY: VWould it surprise you to learn that
you have asked such a question?

THE WITNESS: Could I be allowed to say what I
was going to say in a different way? 1 testified that Dr.
Oppenheimer made a certain statement, that he thought the
thing would fail. There are only‘two possibilities that the
thing should fail, as far as I can see. One is that the device
misfirgd. When the button was pressed, nothing happened;
Certainly the atomic bomb primer of the device would‘work.

We have great experience in this line. After that fired,
then the temperature of the reactants would rise. If they

rose high enough, I doubt if you could find a scientist in the
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world who would not agree that the thermonuclear reaction
would take place. It is taking place in the sun all the time.
Therefore, when Dr. Oppenheimer said that the thing would faii,
it could mean to me only one thing, namely, that he thought
the temperature would notrise high enough. That is why I
said I thought I could read his mind.

BY MR, SLVERMAN:

Q Let me suggest this to you, and see whether it doe
not refresh your recollection as to what Dr. Oppenlieimer
did say, if he said it; that he thought that the Greenhouse
tests wouldn't fail,but fail or not, they would not be
particularly relevant to deciding the question of the feasibility
of the Super?

A I am qguite sure that he didn't say that.

Q In fact, the Greenhouse test did not fail, is that
not right? .

A That is right.

' Q In fact, did they demonstrate the feasibility of the
Super?

A You are asking me a question in a field in wdchl
have no sufficient competence to answer. All I can say is
that everyone connected with the Greenhouse tests was elated
at the outcome of the Greenhouse tests. I believe that the
success of the Greamhouse tests led to the sugcessful tests at

© Ivy.
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Q Did Dr . Oppenheimer say that he thought the

Greenhouse tests were not directly relevant to the determination
of the feasibility of the classical super, but that it was
far along and people at Los Alamos had their hearts so much

in it that it ought to be allowed to continue; otherwise it
woirld disrupt things too much and discourage them?

A I testified what I remember Dr. Oppenheimer to say,
and I don't see much point in the question, sir.

Q You ultimately signed the report.

A Yes.

0 And there is a part of it that you have regretted
signing?

A The thing that I regret is that the report was used
to slow down the hydrogen bomb program. The statements having
to do with the hwrogen bomb come in the last three paragraphs,
save farone rather trivial one.

Q Did Dr. Oppenheimer use the report to slow down the
Hydrogen bomb program?

A I don't know who used the report. I have had
Edward Teller tell me, as I said yesterday, that the report
was used to slow down the progranm.

Q This being a matter where Dr. Oppenheimer personally
is very seriously concerned, it becomes a matter o conside:;able
importance as to whether Dr. Oppenheimer used it.

A Dr. Oppenheimer wrote the report, I am sure. Dr.
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Oppenheimer ordered the statements presumably in the order
of the importance he attached to them, and the super was more
orlless damned by faint praise.

Q Did everybody go over the report?

¥:\ On the last day of the meeting with everybody with
an airplane ticket in his pocket, ohe goes over a report and
if there is not something that is obviously terribly wrong,
one signs it.

Q There were changes made in the report?

A Of a rather trivial nature.

Q You suggested some?

A I can't recall whether I did. It is possible that I
did.

r It was a pretty serious matter, this report, obviously.

A You see, this was the point that I was not sure of. |
I did not know that this report was anything more than a
document to go into the files to be looked at in two or three
years, so that one could see in what direction the pogrﬁm
should be then oriented. 1 had no idea of the fact that this
report was to affect immediate policy. It was a so-called
lbng range objecti#e panel. I thought of it as something that
would be pulled out of a file in a couple of years, someone
woﬁld look at it and say, '"Well, perhaps we ought to get into
some of these things that are in this long range panel report."

r Wasn't this report prepared in the light of a

o
.
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possibility of our being involved in all out war in the near
- future? |

A I understood the panel to be called to review the
long range objectives of the military weapons program as it
had been reviewed in the past. I believe this was the second
or perhaps the third meeting of such a panel.

Q This panel was meeting just after the Chinese
interventionvin Korea, wasn't it?

A When you state that I am sure that ya have checked
the dates. It would take me some time to be sure of that.
Certainly the Korean war was on at the time.

o Did you consider the small weapons program a long
range thing?

A No. I thought the small weapons program was a
rather simple program to develop compared to the program of
developing the implosion weapon in the first place, or
developing the hydrogen bomb. The principles of making small
weapons were well known. It seemed to Bbe mainly what we
call a hardware program. One takes designs which are theoretic-
ally good and one builds the small weapons. No fundamental
research so far as I know had to be done to implement this
program. This is one of the reasopé why I thought it should
not interfere with the hydrogen bomb program. It took a
different type of man to do the work.

Q The small weapons program was one of the major things
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discussed in this report.

A That is right.

Q And simce it was mainly a hardware problem, it was
not very much of a long range thing, was it?

A It was in the zero to two year period, which was
one of the two periods which the program was concgrned wi th,

Q Would you consider zero to two years long range?

A I believe that our directives were to consider long
range programs in three stages, zero to two years, which was

called the short range program; two to five years, called

the intermediate program, and beyond that, the long range

program.

Q As to the zero to two years part, that was not a
matter that was going to be long range looked at after some
years?

A No, but I was not setting the agenda of this meeting.
That was in Dr. Oppenheimer's hands, and he spent most of
the time or a good part of the time talking on this phase.
That was not my ding, sir.

c I think you said Dr. Oppenheimer invited you as the
representative of the opposite view.

A He said as much. As I said, I admiredvhim for doing

that.

Q Ahd yar considered yourself the representative of

the opposite view?
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A I think that is true, yes.

Q And that was the opposite view on the hydrogen bomb?

A That is right.

Q As the representative of the opposite view oa the
hydrogen bomb, weren't you perhaps more interested iun what
was said in the report about the hydrogen bomb than anything
else?

A I was only interested in seeing that the h:drogen
bomb program was not stopped. The hydrogen bomb prozram was at
that time on the rails. The Greenhows e device was being
fabricated people were ﬁorking hard to build the instruimentaticn
to tell whether the thermonuclear reaction took placc. I thought
the hydrogen bomb prograﬁ at that time was in very good chape.
The only thing that could have happened was that it be stopped.
It could not have been speeded up tremendously at that point.

A Surely that was not the only thing that you wvere
interested in the report in relation to the hydroge: bLoml --
that it should not be stopped?

A After 1 heard Dr. Oppenheimer's statement that
wzs my main interest, yves.

Q Didn't you read with particular care the portions
of the report that referred to tﬁe hydrogen bomb?

A I thought I did, but as I pointed out, one who is
not trained in the legal ways of reading documents would

not have found this thing to be a document which woculd slow
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down the hydrogen bomb program. It turned out to be that.

Q » Was Dr. Oppenheimer a man trained in the legal ways
of reading documents?

A I would certainly say that Dr. Oppenibeimer is
one of the most skilled document writers that I bhave ever
run across.

c That is slightly different from being tirained in the
legal way of reading and writing documents.

A If he is trained or not, I say he has the <lill.
I don't say this in a derogatory sense.

MR. ROBB: Mr. Chairman, these questions arc pectiing
a bit frivolous.

MR. SILVERMAN: There is nothing frivolous abcout
them. Here is a man that signed the report and didn't Inow
what was in it, although he was the representative of th
opposite camp on that precise point.

MR. GRAY: Mr., Silverman will proceed.

BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q As the representative of the opposite carp, did you
not read -~ I withdraw that.

Was it lawyers who were reading the document and
misreading it?

A I really don't know. Someone in the Atomic Encirgy
Commission read the document and apparently tried to reorient

the program at Los Alamos to the detriment of the hydrogen
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borsb program. This I have been told by Edward Teller. That

is my only source of information on this point.

Q Dr. Alvarez, would it be fair to say that the
document that you signed was a document which fairly
represented the views of the committee, that afterwvards yam
were informed that it was misused, and that you thereafter
regretted that you had signed it?

MR. ROBB: Could I have that question iead back?

(Question read by the reporter.)

THE WITNESS: I would say this, sir, that the main
emphasis of the document was on the small weapons, and this
represented the opinions of most of the members of the committce.
As I said I was essentially neutral on this point. I had no
strong feelings one way or the other. 1 appreciated the fact
that small weapons were useful things..

BY MR. SILVERMEN:

(o) You have not regretted the part about the small
weapons?

A I have certainly not regretted the part about building
small weapons. I lwe regretted the part that recommendations
apparently were interpreted fo mean that the small weapons
had a higher priority than the hydrogen boﬁb, and therefore
were to be allowed to interfere with the hydrogen bomb. That
is my objection to the report.

Q Whdhn you read the report at the time, did it scem



to reflect the views of the panel, including yourself?

A As I said, I didn't appreciate this fime point in
the gmphasisa I signed the thing and therefore I acrced. HMy
name is signed to the thing.

Q> Are ynu sure that your present disagreement with
the report isnft the result of a change of mind on your part?

A ! an completely convinced of that. I havc re-read
the report and knowing now what happened at Los Alanbs, Y can
sez why it happened, and I can see that I was not carefﬁl
eaough to guard against this possibility.

Q That is what I am suggesting to you, that it is
what happened afterwards that made you regret signing the
repat;that when you read the report, it did seem to you
to reflect the views of the panel.

A It is quite clear to me that my regrets come from
the fact that the report was used this ﬁﬁy, and it was used
this way because of the lack of vigilance on my part to see
that the report did not act adversely to the hydrogen horh
I thought in view d Dr. Oppenheimer's statements that things
were under control.

Q You feel you fell down on the job as the representa-
tive of the opposite camp?

A That is right, and I am reminded of a recent case
that has been much in the papers --

MR. SILVERMAN: We have been stopped --
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MR. ROBB: Wait a minute. I think he has 2 right
to explain the answer.

MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. McCloy was stopped.

MR. GRAY: He later testified on the point that I
stopped it on.

MR. SILVERMAN: He never gave the example.

MR. GRAY: Yes he did.

MR. SILVERMAN: All right.

THE WITNESS: I said we have a recent examnple of a
man more skilled than I in the political field who thought
‘after having a meeting with another gentleman that ke had his
points across, he felt very happy about it, he signed the
documept and went out of the room saying, "I have won ny
point”’, and he took a terrible beating in the press. I find
that I was in the same position. I thought I had gotten ny
points across. I signed the document which I thought fairly
reflected the views which I heard expressed in the meeting.
I found out later that I had been had, if you don't mind my
using that expression.

BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q Now, you testified to a statement by Dr. Bush. i
think you said it was two or three months after the GAC
meeting ~- a couple of months or so.

A No, I didn't testify in that way. I testified that

it was at the week that Dr. Bush's article was reprinted in
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Life Magazine.

Q Yes, I remember you said that. You said Z“hat would
give you the date within a day or two.

A That isright.

Q And I thought you said you thought it was a
couple of month} -

MR. ROBB: That was my question. I thought that is
what it was. I was trying to bring him down to the date.
BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q Have you since checked the date of that?

A No, I wen't. As a matter of fact, I kave never
even asked whether such a meeting took place. I have never
checked with the Atomic Energy Commission or anyone clse to
find out that such a meeting took place.

Q What meeting?

| A The méetihg to evaluate the effects of the bonb.
I am going completely on my memory there.

@ Did I understand you said that Dr. Bush said that
the reason he was Chairman -- the reason the President had
named him as Chairman was that the President.didn't trust Dr.
Oppenhéinmer? |

A Tha t was the reason that he said he thought he had
been named Chairman. I rather doubt that the President ﬁié

him that he didn't trust Dr. Oppenheimer. I think this was

Dr. Bush's construction.
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Q Have you heard since that that panel was not named
by the President but by the Air Force?

A I have never heard a single word about this panel,
sir. As I said, I refreshed my memory on the long range
objective panel. I re-read the report. I have nevcr checked
at all anything to do with this. As a matter of fact, I had
forgotten this thing until recently. I did not mention it
to the gentlemen who questioned me in Berkeley some uonths age.

Q You mean Mr. Robb?

A Yes .

Q How long‘ago were you questioned at Berkeloy?

A It was probably in February or March.

You gathered, you said, that Dr. Bush -~ I withdraw

o

that.

Dr. Bush said that he understood the reason that he,
Dr. Bush, had been named Chairman and not Dr. Oppenhcimer was
that he, Dr.Bush, thought that the President didn't trust Dr.
Oppenheimer?

MR. ROBB: Wait a minute. I don't think the winess
so testified. |

MR. GRAY: I think that is correct. That was not
the witness' testimony.

MR. SILVERMAN: I thought the witness just said that.

MR. ROBB: No, he said he thought that.

MR. SILVERMAN: I thought that is what I said.



MR. GRAY: No, yaisaid that he unders tood.

The witness testified that he did not have any reascn to
believe the President had told Dr. Bush that, that he thought
that Dr. Bush said that because he, Dr. Bush, thought it.

Is that correct?

THE WITNESS: I pointed out the fact that Dr. Bush
was trying to justify to himself his chairmanship of this
committee. He pointed out his own limitations and said
essentially, "Why have I been chosen? Why wasn't it Dvr.
Oppenheimer? He is the logical man."

BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q This was a pretty important committee.

A I think it was a very important committee.

Q The President was about to make a momentcus
announcement .

A That is right.

Q And he wanted to be swe he was advised by peconle he
trusted.

A That is right.

Q Didn't you say to Dr. Bush, "Look, if thc Piresident
doesn't trust Dr. Oppenheimer, why does he name him to the
committee at dl'?

A As I pointed out to you, this wasthe first time
I had ever heard Dr. Oppenheimer's trustworthiness challenged,

Until that X¥ime.I had always thought that Dr. Oppenheiumer
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was the most loyal person, the most wonderful man. He¢ is one
of my scintific heroes. I had never had may reasm to believe
that Dr. Oppenheimer would not do anything that was not right.

Q In any event you did not say to Dr. Bush why did
the President appoint him at all if he didn't trus% him, and
Dr. Bush didn't say why.

A No, this question didn't come up.

MR. SILVERMAN: That is all. Thank you.

MR. GRAY: Dr. Alvarez, foi the purposes of the
record, references have been made in the direct and cross
examination to the panel on which you served, énd there has
beén considerable discussion. I woulé like toget clear on
this point. Would the correct title of this commitice have
been, as you recall it, Panel on Military Objectives in the
Field of Atomic Energy? I am not trying to confuse you.

THE WITNESS: That is possible. I believe it is
always refgrred to as the Long Range Objective Panel. The
precise title I am not clear on, sir.

| (Discussion off the record.)

MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. Chairman, perhaps if it is
helpful, may I point this out: There was a panel on long
range objectives in 1948 of whichDr. Alvarez was not a umcmber,
and which I assume is perhaps what youare looking at. There
is a panel in 1950, Research and Development ﬁoard, Committce

on Atomic Energy, Ad Hoc Pard on Military Objectives in the
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Field of Atomic Energy, from Novewber 21, 1950, to January 30,
1951, of which Dr. Ovpenheimer was Chairman, and of which Dr.
Alvarez was a member, and which is the panel I assuwc Dr.
Alvarez was testifying about.

THE WITNESS: 1 believe this is the reason thc panel
I served on was referred to‘as the Long Range Objec:’vecs Panel,
because we considered it to be a continuation of the first
panel. At least during that discusg&ion, Dr. Oppenhcimer read
to us the report o the first panel, and led ws to beclicve
that we were the second such panel to be installed.

MR, GRAY: Thank you. I think that identifies for
me and I hope for the recérd which panel we are tall'ing about.

MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. Chairman, while we arc on this
subject of panels, and the biography, I find a slight
correction that has to be made in the biography with rezpect
to one of the panels that has been testified about here.

MR. GRAY: Has it been testified about by this
witness?

MR. SILVERMAN: Yes, sir. It was the Pancl on the
Soviet Explosions in 1948, of whichDr. Bush was Chairman. 1In
this biography Admiral Parsons is mentioned as chairman. You
recall that Dr. Oppenheimer testified that this was gotten
up by his secretary, and the biography names Admiral Parsons
as a chairman. That is an error. It was Dr. Bush who was

Chairman. It is the Department of the Air Force AFOAT-1
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Advisory Pénel to General Hoyt Vandenberg, Review Panel}
on the Soviet Explosions, September, 1949.

MR. GRAY: ©Now, Dr. Alvarexz, is it quite clear to
you that you signed this report rather than subscrived to it?

THE WITNESS: I certainly signed it, yes, sir.

MR. GRAY: I believe we have had testimony 7rom one
member of that panel who was not quite clear as to vhether
the repért was signed by the membership or not, but ycu are
clear on that point?

THE WITNEES: I can't_remamber the physical aet of
signing it.

MR. GRAY: You have seen the document recently?

THE WITNESS: I have seen the document.

MR. GRAY: And your name is on it?

/ NHE WITNESS: I have seen my name typewritten on the
document. I believe that I signed it, and 1 certainly should
have signed it. Whether I went through the physical act ox
not, I don't recall. I mean I would have signed it. The only
reason for not signing it would have been that I had to catch
an airplane before the final draft was in or soawe thing of that
sort.

MR. GRAY: Has this report or any portions of it been
in the’record??

MR. ROBB: No, sir, I dm't think so. Has it?

MR. SILVERMAN: It is a classified report, or am I
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wrong?
MR. ROLANDER: To clarify the signaturc, D,
Alvarez saw a copy of the report whih ies in the posscession
. of the AEC. He did not see the original which would have
had signatures. In fact, signatures did appear. The record
that Dr. Alvarez saw was an ofﬁcial copy.

MER. GRAY: I understand that, and I thi: I he cannot

remember whether he signed so we still don't know wiether it
was a signed document on the basis of testimony kelore this
Board. |
THE WITNESS: I would certainly not try to get out of
my responsibility by saying that I perhaps had not sigoed it.
‘ MR. GRAY: This is not my purpose, Dr. Alvaves.
I am trying to get it clear in my mind whether this was the lLind
of a report that each of the members signed, or whether e
members more or less left it to the Chairman to i'n:i’se the ‘
report saying that they subscribed to his summary of it.
THE WITNESS: Excuse me. I believe that I do recall \
now how the signatures took place. I believe the final
document was typed up after I had left Washington, and that
it was brought tome to sign by a courier of the Atonic
. Energy Commission. 1 hé.ve this remembrance of it on one
occasion having signed a report of a committee in this fashion.

Perhaps this happened this time.

MR, SILVERMAN: Mr. Chairman, my recollection is

O



that Mr. Robb examined Dr. Kelly, I think, about the same
document and perhaps if Mr. Robb has a copy, he can tell it.
I don't know. This was done in a classified session.

MR. ROBB: I don't have a photostat, Mir. Chairman.
If that is the report I examined Dr. Kelly about, I had only
an excerpt.

THE WITNESS: Sir, my memory is now complote. I
do remember how I signed this report. It was brought by.
courier to Pasadena, and I went down and signed it in
the office of Dr. Lauritsen together with Dr. Bacher. The
three of us signed it in Pasadena.

MR. GRAf: I think thatanswers the question.

Dr. Alvarez, what was the period of your service at
Los Alamos?

THE WITNESS: I believe, sir, that I arrived there
in April of 1944,and left in appoximately November of 1945.

MR. GRAY: My next question is one wh;ch kas not
been the subject of testimony at all, by you here this norning,
so it is something new to you. Firstof all, do you remember
when the news about the Fuchs treachery took place, or I mean
came to you? |

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

MR. GRAY: Do you remember approximately when that
was?

' THE WITNESS: 1 think it would take me sore little
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while to‘find in my memory exactly when that took place.

MR. GRAY: Let me see if I can help you on that.

MR. ROLANDER: It was approximately February 1950,
when the first news came to the AEC. |

MR. GRAY: When the news first came to the AEC?

MR. ROLANDER: Yes, from the investigativc channels.

MR. GRAY: Can you remember under what circumstances
you first heard about it?

THE WITNESS: I read it in the paper, sir.

MR. GRAY: You never heard any intimation hofore
that about this?

THE WITNESS: Absolutely none.

PDR. EVANS: Did you know Fuchs?

THE WITNESS: I nodded to him in the halls when ve
passed in Los Alamos. I had no scientific business with hin.
He was a very retiring peréon. He didn't want to make friends
for fairly obvious reasons. I understand that when there
were parties at Los Alamos, he would take care of the children
of the people who went to the parties so he had an excuse not
to go. He was not a particularly social person. I had no
reason to know him scientifically, and I certainly never got
to know him socially. I recognized him and nodded to him in
the halls. That is my omly recollection of him, sir.

MR. GRAY: Have you ever heard it intimm ted that
these facts about Fuchs were known to anybody in the scientific

community in this country before the public announcement and
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the events immediately leading up to the public auncuncenent?

THE WITNESS: I had never heard any such allcgatlion.

MR. GRAY: Do you have any questions, Dr. Dvans?

DR. EVANS: 1 have some questions, yes.

Dr. Alvarez, you have been asked a good uany
questions and been sitting on that chair guite a time, and the
main thing that we have gotten aut of you is that you have
tried to show that Dr. Oppenheimer was opposed to %he
development of the Super weapon,,is that true?

THE WITNESS: 1 believe this has been known for a
“long time, and I think I just have given some corroborative
testimony in this regard. |

DR. EVANS: What does this mean in your mind -- ary-
thing?

THE WITNESS: By itself it means absolutely nothing
because I have many other friends in the scientific werld
who feel precisely this way. The point I was trying to bring
out was that every time 1 have_found a person who felt this
way, I have seen Dr. Oppenheimer's influence on that person's
mind. I don't think there is anything wrong with this. I
would certainly try to persuade people of my point of view,
and Dr. Oppenheimer is quit free and should try to persuade
people of his convictions. I just point ouf the facts as I
see them, that this reaction has always taken place in tle

people that I know who have been opposed to the bomb.



DR, EVANS: It doesn't mean that he was disloyal?

THE WITNESS: Absolutely not, sir.

DR. EVANS: Might it mean that he‘had moxrl scruples
about the development of the atomic bomb?

THE WITNESS: I have heard that he has. Iic has never
expregssed them to me. I told you the 6ne occasion on which
D;. Oppenheimer expressed to me his regsons for not waﬁting to
build the hydrogen bomb, and it had nothing to doywith morals,
in the usual sense.

DR. EVANS: You think it might have beén‘peculiar
for him to have moral scruples after he had been so active
in developing the atomic bomb?

THE WITNESS: I have never had any moral scruples
about having worked on the atomic bomb, because I felt tiat
the atomic bomb saved countless lives, both Japanese and
American. Had the wargone on for another waek, I am sure
that the fire raids on the Japanese cities would have killed
more people than were killed in the atomic bambs. I am also
quite convinced that the atomic bomb stopped the invasion of
Japan, and therefore saved well over 100,000 American lives.

I believe there are estimtes of up to a half million.

DR, EVANS: Don't we always have moral scruples

when a new weapon is produced?

THE WITNESS: That is a question I can't answer, sir.

DR. EVANS: After the Battle of Hastings, a litde




before my time --

MR. SILVERMAN: Would you give the time, sir?

DR. EVANS: 1I cannot give the time, but i: was
before I was born.

MR. SILVERMAN: That is 1066, sir,

DR. EVANS: Thére was great talk about ostracising
the long bow, because it was so strong that it could fire an
arrow with such force, it occasionally pierced armor and
killed a man. They felt they ought to outlaw it.

When the Kentucky rifle came in, it was so deadly
that they talked of getting rid of it. When we had poison gas,
I made a lot of lectures about it; that it was terrible. So
we have had that after every new weapon that has been
developed.

THE WITNESS: Yes, I recognize that.

DR. EVANS: This opposition fhat Dr. Opperhecimer
had might we have been jealous that someone else was becoming
prominent in this field, rather than himself?

THE WITNESS: 1I don't think so, no.

DR. EVANS: You don't think so?

THE WITNESS: No.

DR. EVANS: Do you think that Dr. Oppenheimer had
considerable power with men like Conant, Bush and Grbves?

THE WITNESS: I don't th;nk power is the right word.

Dr. Oppenheimer is certainly one of the most persuasive men



that has ever lived, and he certainly had influence. They
respected his opinions aﬁd listened to him.

DR. EVANS: Looking by hindsight, do you think he
showed good judgment in the fact that he opposed thiis bomb
in the light of present conditions?

THE WITNESS: I think he‘showed exceedingly poor
judgment. I toldhim so the first time he told me hr vas
opposed to it. I have continued to think so. The thiﬁé wvhich
I thought at that time was the overpowering reason for
buildingthe hydrogen bomb was that if we did not do it, some
day we might wake up and read headlines and see piciures of
an explosion such as we saw a month or so ago, only this
would be done off the coast of Siberia. I felt surc that
this would be one of the most disastrous things'thaﬁ cculd
possibly happen\to this country. I thought we must rot let
this happen.

DR. EVANS: His opposition to it, might it mean
that he feared the spending of a large sum of money and the
using of time on a project that would not work and might thus
endanger the security of our country by not going ahead with a
project that we knew would work?

THE WITNESS: Ithink he has expressed an opinion
somewhat asnyou just stated it.

DR. EVANS: You see, Dr. Alvaregz, as a nember of

this Board, I am trying to get something about what is in your



mind and what is in Dr. Oppenheimer's mind.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

DR. EVANS: We have a recommendation to male and
we have to do the best we can. You understand that.

THE WITNESS: I do, sir.

DR, EVANS: You mentioned Professor Serber. That is
the same Professor Serber that had these left wing :cudencies
or do you know anything about that?

THE WITNESS: I know nothing of that personally. I
have no personal knowledge of it. I have read and I have bheen
told by other people that this might be so.

DR, EVANS: Were there a number of other men in the
country that could have built the A bomb?

THE WITNESS: I am sufe that there are. I don't want
in any way to minimize Dr . Oppenheimer's contribution, because
to my way of thinking he did a truly outstanding job at Los
Alamos. I think he was one of the greatest directors of a
military program that this country has ever seen. I stand in
awe of the job he did at Los Alamos.

DR. EVANS: You spoke of Dr. Bush.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

DR. EVANS: Possibly having made a statement -- I
forget what your statement was -- but this is the question I
want to ask you. Did Dr. Bush somesimes make statements that

are not quite accurate? Do you know anything about that?

’
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THE WITNESS: I really could not say. 1 have
great admiration for Dr. Bush as a scientist and ac a
scientific adminiétrator, and I like him as a man.
DR. EVANS: That is all I have.
MR. GRAY: Mr. Robb.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ROBB:

0 Dr. Alvarez, Mr. Silverman asked you sorc qucstions
about the relative competency of you and your group and the
duPont company to build reactors. I would like to ask you, sir ,
were you intending to suggest in any way that you werc to be
compared with the duPont company? |

A No, that is ridiculous.

Q Would you care who built the reactors, as long as
they were built?

A Of course not. As a matter of fact, I didu'i'want to
build reactors. I disliked the idea of buildng reactcrs.

I suggested that we build reactors only because I felt the
country needed them and we could be.of help.

Q And if the goverment had employed the duPont
company to come and build them out near San Francisco, you
would have been very happy?

A It would have made no difference where the dulont
company built them. I am sure the duPont company would not

have asked me for any advice, because I have no special
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competence in that field.

Q Your point was that we ought 'to get going on the
hydrogen bomb.

A That is right.

c Whoever did it.

A That is right.

Q You testified as other did that Dr . Oppe:heimer did
a splendid job at Los Alamos. Did.it strike you as peculiaxr
that one who had done such a splendid job at Los Alomos
could entertain opinions which you considered so vrong in
respect of the hydrogen bomb.

A I was verysurprised when I found that he hnd fthese
opiniops, since he had used the Super as the primary incentive
to get me to join the Manhattan District in the first place.
He had spent almost a sdlid afternoon telling me aboutl the
exciting possibilities of the Super, and asked me to join and
help with the building of such a device. So I was therefore
very surprised when I found he had these objections. You
will note in my diary that I had no hint of this until
essentially the last antry.

Q. To use a homely simile, didlit strike you as
peculiar that such a wonderful batter as Dr. Oppenhcimer
should suddenly begin striking out the way he did?

A It certaily struck me as pecular.

Q One further question, Doctor. Have ya had any




hesitation in answering questions here or in any way
restricted your tesfimony 1n'answer to any question piut to you
because of the presence here of Dr. Oppenheimer and hiz counscl?
A No. I must confess that it is a little hard for
personal reasons to say some of the things that I lLuve said,
but I have said them anyway.
MR. ROBB: Thank you.
MR. GRAY: Mr., Silverman.
RECROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. SILVERMAN:
c Did it strike vou as peculiar that Dr. Boclcr had
these views about the hydrogen homb?
A It did, as a matter of fact, yes.

Q Dr. Lauritsen?

A Yes.
© Dr. Conant?
A No, not in the case of Dr. Conant for a rcason which

I will mention now.

(A If you think it will be helpful.

A I think it will, yes. I can remember an cccasion
a few months before the Russian explosion when Dr. Lawrence,
Dr. Conant and I were driving #rom Befkeley to San Francisco.

Q  Which explosion is this?

A The first one. The one that led tothe hydrogen bomb

controversy, in 1949.




Q .You mean the Soviet.

A The firsf Soviet operation Joe. Dr, Lawrcnce was
trying to get’a reaction from Dr . Conant on the pozczikility
of radiological warfare and Dr. Conant said he wasn'?{
interested. He didn't want to be bothered with it. I have
the strong recollection that Dr. Conant said somethi:g to the
effect that he was getting too old and too tired tc e an
advisor on affairs of this sort. He said, "I did ny job during
the war" and intimated that he was burned out, and ¢ cculd
not get any enthusiasm for new projects. So when D:. Conant
disapproved of the hydrogen bomb, I interpreted it in thoe
light of that conversation.

DR. EVANS: Dr. Conant was not an authority in that
field at all. He is an organic chemist, isn't that true?

THE WITNESS: Dr. Conant shoed to me a rcrarkable
degree of knowledge about the details of nuclear phyzics
and the cons trution of bombs an the two occasions I tnlked
with him at Los Alamos. I was almOSt overwhelmed by the
detailed knowledge he had on all fields. So although he was
trained as an organic chemist, he certainly got to know a lot
of weapon technology.

DR. EVANS: He had been briefed up very well.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q You say Dr . DuBridge worked on the atom bombh, had




he not?

A No, he had not.

Q Dr. Fermi had, of murs.

A Yes.

Q Were you surprised that he was against goeing ahead
with the hydrogen bomb and did that strike you as peculiar?

A I never knew that Dr. Fermi was. I knew Dr. Termi
worked quite hardat Los Alamos for two summers since $the
Presidential announcenent.

Q Didn't you know that he was one of the meunlers of
the General Advisory Committee?

A I knew he was, and I heared that he was cnc of two
men who signed an appendix to the report expressing views
somewhat dif ferent from those of the majority group lod by
Dr. Oppenheimer.

Q Did you know whether the extent to which {love
was that difference that perhaps théy were even mnoi'c opposed
to the hydrogen bhomb than the others?

A I had not read thé report, and I was led to Dbelieve
that Dr. Fermi did not have suchstrong objections. I may be
wrong on this. That was my impression.

Q How did Dr. Rabi feel? Had he worked on the atom

bomb?

et
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A He was a consul tant to Los Alamos. He would. cocnm
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occasionally from his job as assistant director of the Radar
Laboratory and talk with people about problens.

n Did it strike ydu as peculiar that he was opposed to
going ahead wih the hydrogen bomb?

A As I stated earlier, I was surprised tha: Le changed
his mind so drastically after talkig with Dr. Oppenhcimer.
I was not at all surprised by his initial reaction, which was

one of enthusiasm.

© And you have no way of knowing who else those peonle
consulted?
A No.

MR. SILVERMAN: Thank you.

MR. ROBB: That is all.

MR. GRAY:' Thnk you very much, Dcc tor.

(Wiiness excused.)

MR. GRAY: Let me say for the record that in
recognition of the fact that Mr. Mitchell,and I want hin to
be present when we discuss the request for documents which
has been earlier referred to, inasmuch as he was iavolved,
and in view of the fact that we at this point are lietween
witnesses, I would like to return to the discussion which
was had -- whatever day it was -- and allow Mr. Garrison to
make his request at this time.

MR. GARRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If I wight

just recapitulate for a moment to explain the nature of the




request, I previously referred to the fact that bac: in the
middle of February, I asked for the minutes and docurcnts
relating to the question & the clearance of Dr. Oppcaheimer by
the AEC in 1947, and that I was thereafter informed in |
General Nichols' ke tter of February 19, 1954, and in a
conversation with Mr. Mitchell ovei the telephone - I,
Mitchells letter of February 19, 1954, and in comversation with
him over the telephone -- that the only information ihat

could be supplied to us would be in the form of a siipulation
which has already been read into the recor@..and which in
substance contained the first half, but not the lasé half

of the sentence in the minutes which finally weré sunplicd fo
us the other day in General Nichols' memorandum to vcu.

I also would note that in the course of Mr.
Lilientpal's cross examination relevant documents to this
whole matter were declassified by the government on the @ ot
and put into evidence. I think there were four that wvere put
in in that fashion, and then two more at our request that
followed that. |

The testimony was left in a somewhat uncerinin state,
I think, and I don't want now to argue its significarce,
except to say that in my own view the second half of the
sentence from the Commission's minutes would indicate to ne

quite clearly thatthe Commission, as such, examined further

reports, and had taken them into account, and had reached tho
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view that they contained no information which would varzant
reconsideration of a clearance which apparehtly teok ploce in
February 1947, which apparently had been reopened oo o result
of the Hoover letter of March.

MR. GRAY: I am going to interrupt, Mr. Gorrison.
I do not wish at this time to discuss the import of ninuies.
I have repeatedly indicated you will be given an cyporiunity
to address yourself to that. I would like now for ycu to
confine yourself to the réquest. |

MR. GARRISON: Yes. Mr. Chairman, to put 1t In
non-technical terms, what I would like to ask the EDcard to
request of the Commission that we have a statement in &c much
detail as classificadion will permit”of the items of
derogatory informgtion which‘were contained in the filcs
that went to the members of the Commission. Those files arec
referred to in Mr. Jones' memaaandum to Mr. Bellesly. I
think it is there stated that every member of the Crmmission
received these particular files or reports except itwo
memoranda which were summaries -- I am doing this Ifrom memory --
which Mr. Jones referred to in his memorandum. I shouid
think it would not be a difficult matter for the Commission
to look at those reports that we know from the record did go
to the Béard members -~ I mean to the Commission members --

and to ask in as much detail as can properly be given here a

description of what the derogatory items consisted of so
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that we may more clearly determine what was beforc Ll
Board -- I mean before the Commission.
I don't want to make a great thing out of this. I
‘ am not going to argue ‘to this Board that the action vhich
the Commission took in 1947 was in any way conclusive or
binding upon this Board at all. I don't want to male such an
argument. I do say it is quite relevant to consideox wiat
those five men who knew Dr. Oppenheimer and went tiy’ough the
report thought and believed at that time.
I think,Mr. Chairman, you raised the quesfian when
I started to make this requést before as to whether we
ought not to make the request directly of the Commizsion. I
‘ should do it any way that you wish, but I do think ivoa the
reading of the rules, it seeﬁs to me, sir, that it is

appropriate ‘and indicated that the Board itself shculd ask

for relevant information. I would refer to section 4.15(e)
which says that the Board will ask the individual AILC
representatives and other witnesses any questions colculated
to obtain the fullest possible disclosure of relevant and
material facts.
Then there is another one, (g), the Board will admit
‘ in evidence this and that and so forth, and then it says,
"Every reasonable effort will be made to obtain the best
evidence reasonably available."

"(j) The Board shall endeavor to obtain 211 the facis

|



that are reascnably available in order to arrive 2t ihm
recommendations."”

I think those are the principal sections. Perhaps
I should refer also to (n), "The Board may request the
Manager to arrange for additional investigation on uny noints
which are material to the delibera tions of the Board uhich
the Board bel ieves need extension or clarificatiorn.”

It seems to me that the proper procedurc .15 iGT
me to ask the Board for this information, and then foxr tiw
Board to try to obtain it.

MR, GRAY: With respect to Mr. Garrison's request,
as I understood it, as we discussed previously, ycu made
particular reference to a conversa tion which was had with
Mr. Mitchell.

MR. GARRISON: And General Nichols and M. Harks.

MR. GRAY: I had forgotten who else was thicrec.
General Nichols and Mr. Marks, with respect to a number of
items, and it is my recollection you said seven the other day.

MR. GARRISON: I think I had five writtcen down on
the yellow piece of paper which I showed to Mr. Mitchell
the other day, and Mr. Marks had a number on a typewritten
nemorandum.

ME. GRAY: I would like to state the impiression
of the Chairman of the Board, and be corrected if I amn wrong.

Among those items were pertinent GAC reperis and/or




minutes.

MR. GARRISON: Yes.

MR. GRAY: It is my information that Dr. (¢ ponheiner
had been notified officially by the Commission that he cculd
have access to these reports and/or minutes, and tint he has
not availed himself of this opportunity.

Among the items, as I understand it, recuested
was the minute which has been read intothe record. OCnc cof
the items involved was Dr. Oppenheimer's testimony :cfore the
Joint Committee on Atomic Energy, if that is the proje> title
of the Congressional Committee concerned. One of tI itcms
was the contehts of Mr. Hoover's letter.

It is my impression that with respect to these
items, whether five or seven or whatever the numbe:, the
request that they be made available in one way or a:;ctier
has been met with respect tb all but two, the two becirg tle
Congressional hearing fecord, which this Board is noi ot
liberty to make available, and the other is the FBI letter,
which under the regulatias we are not at liberty to unke
available,.

With respect to the Congressional testimony, I assume
that it is not inappropriate for Dr. Oppenheimer to request ol
the committee the privilege of seeing those portious of the
Vhearing which contain his own testimony, but this RBoard dces

not have the power to produce such a document.
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I think I have referred to the regulatici: which
Specjfically cover information from the Federal Burenu of
Investigation. So the earlier discussion centered cround
these requests which were made in a conversation boivecen
Atonic Energy Commission officials and Dr. Opperhciuiy's
representatives, and I think those requests have hecen met i
so far as it is possible for this Board to have ary influcnce
in meeting them,‘or any power in meeting them.

Now, with respect to the current reques? which, iif
I understand it correctly, is a list of all items ¢f so-called
dercgatory information about Dr . Oppenheimer in thic hands of
this Board, again I would have to respond that infocriaiicn
which is contained in FBI reports cannot be made a:nilable.

I think I shall have to stop my observaticn at that
point. It may be that my interpretation - of the prccedures
under which we operate is faulty, and I would ask counscl foﬁ
the Board if he has anything to add to what I said.

MR. ROBB: I certainly agree that your internretation
is entirely correct, Mr. Chairman. I would add only one
observation, which is that so far as we are able to bring it
together, all the informtion anq reborts vhich were Lefore
the Commission‘in 1947 are now before this Board for its
consideration and its evaluation.

Of course, as the.Chairman has said, the T3I reports

under the rules of these hearings may not be made available to
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counsel for Dr. Cppenheimer or Dr. Oppenheimer.

MR. GRAY: Let me make one other observaiicn. I sup-~
pose it would be reasomble for couﬁsel to assume thkoi the
Board in its effort to get at the truth with respect 1o any
matter of very material consequence has sought to hove light
thrown on such a matter of material comsequence. Tihisw, of
course, invélves, I am sure, the question of anybod;'s reliance
on the good faith of this Board. What I am tryilng io say
ié that I do not think you are materially disadvantaccd hy
not having the detailed list of information which ycu have
requested.

MR. GARRISON: I would like to make just one
observation. I want to make it clear, Mr, Chairman, that so0
far as the fairness of the members of this Board and their
desire to do the right thing, I have no doubt whatever. Iy
problem is one of knowing what seems to us to be relevant so
fhat we may caoament upon it as one should in presenting D».
Oppenheimer's case, as well as we can. In a process of this
kind I should suppose that the adversary process which we
seem to be engaged in should be carried out to the fullest
extent that it can be done within the limits of the
governmental regulations with respect to the preservaiicn of
whatever has to be confidenti 1, that this process will aid
rather than to the contrary in the deliberations of the Board.

I would like to make one or two things clear inthe
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February discussions and correspbndence. The Commicosion did
indeed say to Dr. Oppenheimer that he might inspect minutes
ané reports of the GAC meetings in which he participnicd, ard
could also see any documents which he himself sigrncl. Vhat I
am talking about here is the action of the Commission in
1247. I am not asking that the FBI reportis be disclcoed. I
appreciate the rule that the reports of the Federal ‘uicau of
Investigation shall not be disclosed to the individunl or to
his representative. I regretfully have to accept iiat rule.

-

It does seem to me, however, that since in the wverr lciter

of General NKichols with which we are concerned, a very laagtay
account is given of numerous derogatory items in thic Zile and
disclosure hasbeen méde of that, I cannot see how ii vould
violate this rule to have us informed as to the derogniocry
items which were before the Bomrd in 1947. I am not asking

for a tramscript of the reports or a copy of the reporis, but
sixply for a description of what the Board acted on, I

mean the Commission acted om.

MR. ROBB: Mr. Chalrman, as I interpret [ir. Gorriscon's
last remark, he does not want a cépy of the reporis or the
transcripts of the reports ' he merely wants to know their
contents, which seems to me to fly right in the facé of the
rule. I am sorry.

MR. GARRISON: Let me ask this final question.

Would it fly in the face of the rule if we were limited
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merey to being told whichof the items now before tiw Board
were before the Commission in 19477

MR. ROBB: I think it would, Mr. Chairman.

MR. GARRISN: I just don't understand thot, (.
Chairman, as to why we can't be told of these itemr, thot such
and such were before the Board, and sach and such werc not,
Wiet disclosure of FBI reports is that any more than ﬁhﬁs
letter itself is a disclosure of FBI reports?

MR. GRAY: I believe that what was beforc the
Commission in 1947, and certainly from the testimony lwere,
cannot he certain, because the recollection of the fcux
former Commissioners who have testified here is unifornmly
hazy as to what happened. I hope that is not an incaréect
statement about their testimony. With respect in any evcét
to what was before them at that time we are not cerinin.

I believe what was before them at that time was FBI rcporis.
It seems to me that comes into the rule,

I would make this further observation, that if
counsel wishes at some subsequent point in these procecdings
to argue the import of the actions of the Commission in so
far as they can be reconstructed in 1947, whether February,
March or August, that opportunity will be given. As far as
this Board is concerned, we mustbe concerned with evcrythiag
before us, and what the Commission did in 1947 is, of coursc,

important, but as you say, not conclusive.
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I would like to suggest a recessat this gmimﬁ.

(Brief recess.)

MR, GRAY: Colcnel Pash, do you care to {ocsiify
under oath? You are not required to.

COLONEL PASH: Yes, sir.

MR. GRAY: Would you give me your full rzame.

COLONEL PASH: Boris T. Pash.

MR. GRAY: Will you raise your right ka:l’. IDoris
T. Pash, do you swear that the testimony you are o give the
Board shall be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing Lut
the truth, so help you God?

COLONEL PASH: 1 do.

BORIS T. PASH 4‘ |

was called as a witness, and having been first duly svorn,

Whereupon,

was examined and testified as follows:

MR. GRAY: Will you be seated, please, =lix.

It is my &ﬁty, Colonel Pash, to remind vcu ci the
existence of the so-called perjury statutes. May I assume
you are familiar wikh them and they need not be reviewed?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

MR. GRAY: You understand, I suppose, or you siculd

know in any event, that there are persons in this rocon who

may not have clearance for certa2in classified materinl. I

would ask, therefore, in the course of your testimcny il you




are getting into classified areas, you seek to notifly wme in
advance so we may take the necessary steps.
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

. : MR. GRAY: Finally, Colonel, I should say to ycu
that we consider this proceeding a confidential maiicr between
the Atomic Energy Commission officials and witnesscs on the
one hand, and Dr. Oppenheimer and his representativcs on the
other. The Commission is making no releases with rcapect to
these proceedings. 1 express the hope on behalf of thic Poard
that witnesses will take the same view.

THE WITNESS: I am, sir.
MR, GRAY: Mr. Robb, will you proceed.
o DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ROBB:
Q Colonel‘Pash, will you give us for the record youé
present station?
A My present station is Presidio of San Francisco,
California.
c You are an officer in the United Btates Army?
A I anm.
Q And have been for how long, sir?

. A I am a reserve officer on active duty, and I have
been on active duty for about 14 years.

Q What is your present assignment?

A Presently I am Chief of the Counterintelligence
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Division in the office of G-2, Headquarters, Sixth ’ :uy.

Q What are your duties in that capacity?

A In that capacity I review and pass on the activities
of my branch offices which are concerned with counieracticn
against espionage, sabotage, the conduct of personrel seccurity
investigations and industrial security investigaticus.

Q Without going into detail for a moment, Cilcnel,
how long have you been engaged in that general sort of work
for the Army?

A About 12 years of the 14.

Q Let me, if you will, get a little of your permonal
history. You came on this present tour of duty wheé?

A About the first of June of 1940.

Q Yhat was your assignment?

A I was then fara short time the counterintclligence
officer of the Ninth Corps Area.

Q Where is that?

A In Presidio of San Francisco. In about liarch of I%{1 --

-

I am not sure of that date -- I became the Chief ol the
Ounterintelligence Branch of the Nith Corps Area, and later
of the Western Defense Command and the Fourth Army.

(Al Will you tell us whether you took any source at
abouﬁ that time in connection with your work?

A In January of 1941, I took the officers investigative

course conducted by the Federal Bureau of Investigation.




Q Where?

A In Washington at ﬁhe Justice Department Nuilding.
I think that is between Tenth and Ninth on Pennsylvrdc.

Q That had to do with espionage and sabotajc?

A Espionage, sabotage, interrogation, writing cf
reports, securing evidence, the overall inveetigat.ve course.

Q What was your next assignment?

A In November 1943, I left the Fourthy Army Hestern
Defense Command and proceeded to Europe where I organized anc
commanded the Scientific Intelligence Mission of the G-2,

War Department, kXnown ander the oode name of the Alscs micsicn.

C What was that mission, Colonel?

A The primary mission was to determine the cutent
of German atomic developments and to find out whetilcr they wrould
or would not use the bomb in World War II, and if possible
secure the scientists and documents and any equiprent that
they may have.

Q How long did that mission last?

A The mission was deactivated in December of 1945.

Q In connection with that work, were you required to
interrogate scientists and other personnel?

A Yes, we did interrogate scientists.

Q Following the completion of that mission, what did
you do?

A In March of 1946, I went to Japan, where I was
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assigned as the Chief of the Foreign Liaison Secticn in G-2,

Headquarters, Far East Command. In connection with those
activities my primary responsibility as designated by the
Chief of Staff was ﬁo deal with the Soviet mission. GLince I
was a colonel, the Chief of‘Staff felt I couid deal =vith
the Commission directly because I speak Russian.

o | You speak Russian?

A Yes, I speak Russian fluently.

Q Were you born in Russia or in this country?
: I was born in San Francisoo.
r Your father was a Russian bishop?

A He arrived in the States in 1894, and in thie later
years he was known as the Metropolitan, which is the to» or
senior bishop of the American Orthodox Church, which officially
I believe the mame is the Russian Orthodox Greek Catholic

Church of North America.

Q Was your mother a Russian or American?
A No, she was born in San Francisco.
- In all events, you learned to speak Russian {ron

your father?
A No, I studied it and had experience, of course.
Q You say you were in Japan for how long?
A Two years.
Q Dealing with the Russians?
A

Primarily. I dealt with all the foreign missions




thereo.

8 = D

Who was the commanding officer in Japan then?
General MacArthur was then commanding.
At the completion of that duty, what did ycu do?

At the completion of that duty I was asaigued to G-2,

Department of Avmy, in the Eurasian Branch.

Q

> 0 P O >

Will you tell us what your work was there?
Study of the Soviet Union and the Soviet Army.
G-2 is Intelligence?

Yes, sir.

At the end of that year, where - did you go?

At the end of that year I was detailed to tihe

Central Intelligence Agency.

Q

A

How long did you stay there?

I served with the Central Intelligence L cncy for

three years.

A

- Are you able within the rules of security regulations

to tell us anything about your work there?

A
Q
A
Q
A
Q

A

No, sir, I am not.

You were there for three years.

Yes, sir.

Until when?

Until I believe the 7th of Jamary 1952.
Then where did you go?

Then I was assigned to Austria, Headquarters,

United States .Forces in Austria, and stationed in Saltizburg.



What was your duty there?

There I was in G-3, which is the planniny ccctilon.
Bow long were you there? |

I returned from Austria in August 1953.

And then you went to your present duty?

Went %o my present station, reporting to the Presidio

in September 1953,

o~

Now, going back to 1943, in what month voo 1%,

Colonel; that you reported for duty at San Francisco in 10437

A

Q

now?

» o » O »

I was in San Francisco at the time in 1642.

What month did you begin your duty as what woo 1%,

Chief of the CounterintelligénceBranch.
Yes, sir.

That was in 1941,

And you stayed there until when?

I would like to make a correction. I an not sure

whether it is early '41l or late. I mentioned the c¢nrly part

of 1941.

Q

I am not sure of that date and I didn't dicclr it.

Coming to May, 1943, Colonel, I will ask you whether

or not at or about that time you began an investigation into

certain reported espionage taking place or which had {aken

place at the Radiation Laboratory in Berkeley?

A

Q

Yes, sir, we did.

Would you tell us something of how that investigaticn




began and what you did?

. Yos, sir.

@ Just tell us in your own way, and I will Iry not to
interrut you.

A I believe it was in May of 1943 an officer from
the Depmrtrent of the Army veported to Geperal De'iiti, who woe
- Commanding Gererzl of the Western Defense Command, wcouncting
that an officer be designated tc conduct a special
investigation connected with War Department Activiiics.

General DwWitt designated me to take chavie of

that investigation,

Together with the initiation of thie imvestigniion, I
received a report from the Deparitment of Army, I thinlt i{ was
the War Depmartment then, indicating that there had hiecu an
attempt to secure infomation from the Radiation Lakoratory
and that the personnel involved were Steve Nelson, of the
Communist Farty. a prominent Communist Party member in
California at the time, and a man by the name of Juo.

We further knew that Joe had furnished 5o%n
information, including irformation of a technical nature, which
I don't recall clearly, and I would not dare to try to cxplain
anythinf of the technical nature, and that he had furnished
Steve Nelson witha timetable pertaining to activities in
which we were tc become interested -- the technical activities.

We had very little information. The only thing we had

definite was that the man's name was Joe, and the fact that
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he had sisters living in New York, and that he had come fronm
New York.

We started the investigation. We immediaiely
started preocuring files of persmnel working at the laboratory
in order to try to anal&ze and determine who thié man moy be.
I will not go into the technical details of our surveillnnce
or operational methods except to say that we did conduct an
investigation.

Vie first thought this man may be a man by the nowce
of Lomanitz.

r© Would you tell w why you thought that?

A Because of Lomanitz's bast history. We wcre able
to procure that. Lomanitz was affiliated wth some Communist
front organizaticns, and actually was reported to be a
Communist Party member.

In our operatbnal work, we were able to procure
a photograph of four men, and I had one of our men working
on that photograprh to determine the background of the personnal
in the photograph.

In the meantime we also found out tl at some
meetings sponsored by either -~ I forget the organization
sponsdring it -- it was on Van Ness Avenue, we obscrved,

I believe, it was either Bohm or Lomanitz going in witﬁ an
unidentified man, a man unidentified by us.

Q Which Bohm was tha t?
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A His first name slips m He was closely affiiinted
socially and I suppose in the school with Lomanitz and Veinherg.
Q By the way, did you ascertain what he was doing at
the time, and where he was employed?
A Yes, we knew that he was employed at the Radiation
Lakoratory.
Q How abput\Bohm?
A Bohm also.
o Go ahead, sir.
A We had an unidentified man and we had this photograph.
As a result of our study we determined and were surc that Joe
was Joseph Weinberg.
Pv Where was he employed?
A He was employed at the Radiation Laboratory.
Q Were you able to ascertain whether Lomanitz,
Weinberg and Bohm were associates or intimates?
A Yes, they were. The photograph consisted of Weinberg,
Lomanitz, a man by the name of Max Friedman, and I think Bohm.
With that in mind we started our operaticnal
procedures and at the same time a review of the file itself.
I reported the identification of Joe to the War Department at
the time. This must have been some time in the early part
or the first half of June 1943.
(o What did your investigation disclose withrespect to

the Communist activities of this group, Weinberg, Lonanitz,
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Bohm and Friedman?

A We determined in the first place that these four
men I mentioned were very frequently together. I don't mean
constantly with no interruption, but very frequently they were
together.

Through our operatbnal procedures, we found out that
Lomanitz was a member of the Communist\Party. From the
conversations we also determined that we had sufficient
information to determine that both Weinberg and Bohm were
members of the Party.

Q By tie way, Colonel, 1 might ask you whether under
security regulations you are permitted to disclése
investigative techniques or operational procedures.

A No, sir. 1 would be glad to present them to the
Board.

Q i might ask you just for the record, Colonel, 1

assume you are here under orders?

A Yes, sir, I have been ordered here by the Department
of the Army.
Q But the testimony you are giving is your own

testimony, and not what someone told ya to say?

A No, sir. I think I better correct that. The
testimony is my own. |

Q Did there come a time when certain steps were

takem with respect to the draft status of this man Lomanitz?
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A Yes, sir. When we determined and felt sure that
Lomanitz was a membér of the Communist Party, we recommend
that his draft deferment not be renewed. I made that
recommendation to General Groves' office.

Q What happened then?

A We received information from General Groves' office
that the deferment will be cancelled, aﬁd we were to keep
General Groves advised of the status of the situation.

When Lomanitz heard the fact that hié deferment was
being can&lléed, he started contacting a number of people.
He contacted members of the union, the FAECT union, which
was interested in the Radiation Laboratory. He contacted his
friends. He discussed with his friends the situvation. He
also called and if I am not mistaken wrote to Dr. Oppenheimer
about it.

Q  What?

A Called Dr. Oppenheimer about it.

Q About when was that, if you remember?

A That was in the early part of August, I think. I
don't know the date.

Q Do ybu recall whether or not Dr. Oppenheiwgr
manifested any interest in thié matter of Lomanitz's deferment?

A Yes. According to my recollection Dr. Oppenheimer
took some steps to request that deferment be granted to

Lomanitz.
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Q Did the activities of Dr. Oppenheimer in that
connection strike you as usual or unusual?

A Not having sufficient knowledge of the technical
phase of this particuler situation, I am not expressing an
opinion which is based on reactions other than any technical
reactions.

0’ Yes, sir.

A Since we were interested in this investigation, we
certainly followed very closely the activities as they were
proceeding, and we felt at the time that pressure was being put on
to keep Lomanitz on the project.

o Pressure by whom?

A By Dr. Oppenheimer, by his associates, Max Friedman,
Weinberg and Bohm.

MR. SILVERMAN: May I interrupt for one mement?
Who do you mean by "his"?

THE WITNESS: Lomanitz's.

BY MR. ROBB:

Q Did it strike you that the pressure put on by
Dr. O»penheimer was ordinary or was out of the ordinary as
it struck you at that time?

A It was my feeling'that there was pressure beyond
that which would be normal.

Q You mentioned the FAECT, the union; did your -

investigation include any study of the Communist tendencies
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or'influencés in that union?

A We based our evaluation of the FAECT on reports
received, We did not investigate the union as such. However,
we also received considerable information from discussions
among those people who are within our investigative field,
and whom we were investigating.

Q lLet me ask you at that point, Colonel, did you
have any jurisdiction to investigate or interview anybody
who was not either in the Army or connected with the project?

A Yes, sir. The project was given to us as our
responsibility when the officer came out from the Department
of the Army.

Q I don't think you quite caught my question. Did your
investigative jurisdiction go‘beyond that? In other words,
could you investigate people who were civilians not
connected with the project?

A No.

Q All right, sir. Now would you come back to the
matter of the union and what you found out about the union?

A Again based on the information available to us and
from reports available to us, we felt that there was a strong
Communist influence among a group of people -- at least #
group of people -- in the union, and that the union was

attempting to place people in the Radiation Laboratory.

Q Do you recall who any of the group of people of the
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union were that you had in mind?

A There was a man by the name of Adelson. There was
‘also a woman belonging to the union called Rose -- it starts
with an "S",

Q Would it be Segure?

A Segure, yes.

Q How about this group that you told us about, the
Weinberg-Bohm-Friedman-Lomanitz group; were they in the union?

A Yes, they were members of the union. To the best of
my knowledge they were members of the union.

Q Was Lomanitz finally drafted?

A Yes. Lomanitz's deferment was cancelled and he was
drafted.

Q At or about that time did you recdve certain
information from Lt.Lyall Johnson concerning statements made
to him by Dr. Oppenheimer?

A I did. Lyall Johnson reported to me toward the end
of August that Dr. Oppehheimer camé to him and made some
statements which he felt I should know about. My reaction was
to request an immediate interview with Dr. Oppenheimer on this‘
matter.

Q Who was Johnson?

A Johnson was the intelligence officer for the Radiation

Laboratory.

Q Do you recall whether or not Johnson gave you any
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details of that conversation?

A Johnson told me it concerned a possible espionage
effort in connection with the Radiation Labora tory.

Q Did you thereafter interview Dr. Oppenheimer?

A Yes, 1 interviewed Dr. Oppenheimer on the 26th or
27th of August, 1943.

Q Where did the interview take plece, Colone}l, am
what were the circumstances under which it took place?

A The interview was conducted on the University of
California campus. There was a building in which Lt. Johnson
had his office. Captain Fidler was a member of the staff. 1
don't recall his exact capacity at the time. He was in the
Army. We used Lt. Johnson's office to conduct this interview.

Q Did you make any arrangements to have it recorded.

A Yes. We felt that this information was of
considerable importance, and we did not want to rely later
on on'what wve may remember,&so I made arrangements for an
officer in charge ofi my investigative unit to set up a
recording for us. |

Q So far as you know, was that with the knowledge of

Br. Oppenheimer, or was he unaware that it was being recorded?

A As far as I know, he was unaware.
Q Subsequent to the interview, were the recordings
transcribed?

A Yes, after hearing what Dr. Oppenheimer had to tell
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me, I immediately had the recordings trameribed so I could
forward_them to General Groves' office. I recall we made the
first draft off the recordings and we tried to check that as
much Qs we could. Subsequent to that I wanted to hurry this

to General Groves, so I recall we started doing a second typihg
of it, and I stopped the typist and forwarded it by air mail
immediately to General Groves' office.

0 Bo far as you were able to tell at that time did the
draft that you forwarded substantially state or reflect your
conversation with Dr. Oppenheimer?

A It did, yes.

Q Would you say that every word was right?

A No, there were a few words missing. 1 personally
made some corrections in the draft.

(A After you forwarded it?

A Before I forwarded it. That 1s.before I forwarded
this first draft.

Q I have before me a copy of a memorandum dated
‘28 August 1943, indicating that on that date you forwarded
to Colonel Lansdale the tranécript of your intervie w with
Dr. Oppenheimer. Would that enable you to tell us when you
did forward it to General Groves?

A This was forwarded either on the 28th of August
or £ may be forwarded the day after.

MR. GRAY: May I ask was this covering memorandum
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in the record, too?

MR. ROBB: I am not sure whether it was or not. Do
you want me to read it in?

This is "Headquarters Western Defense Command and
Fourth Army

"Office of the Assistant Chief of Staff G-2

"P?esidio of San Francisco, Calif.

"In Reply Refer to: (CIB

"28 August 1943

"Subject: DSM Project

"To: Lieut. Colonel John Lansdale, Jr., Room 2C 654
Pentagon Building, Washington, D. C.

"l., Transmitted herewith im a transcript of an
interview with Dr. J. R. Oppenheimer, held in the office of
Captain Fidlei, University of California.

"2. No distribution cfthislwas made other than to
furnish one copy to Mr. King of the San Franmcisco Field
Division of the Federal Bureau of Investigation. General
Groves will be shown a copy of this transcription when he
arrives on the lst of September 1943.

"3. No comments or codnclusions are made until d
thooough study is completed. Any Buch recommendations or
conclus ions reached will be reported to you.

"For the A C of S, G-2:

/s/ Boris T. Pash, Lt. Col., M.I., Chief, Counter
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Intelligence Branch.

"1 Incl: As indicated (dup).”
BY MR. ROBB:
Q Have you recenily refreshed your recollection
about this interview by looking over a copy of that transcript?
A I have.
Q Do you recall, Colonel, whether or not in that
interview Dr . Oppenheimer said anything to you about somebody
in the Office of the Russian Consul?

A Of the Soviet Consul, yes.

Q Is there any question ‘in your mind that was mentioned?
A  No, sir, that was mentioned.
Q In what connection?

A Dr. Oppenheimer told me that a man contacted him
with the suggestion that technical information can be made
available through proper channels to the Soviet Consulate
and that there was a man available who was proficient in
microfﬂming, and that there were channels established for the
transmission of available information.

Q Is there any question that Dr. Orpenheimer made that
reference to the use o microfilm?

A No, sir, not in my mind.

Q Do you recall whether or not Dr. Oppenheimer
mentioned to you whether this man vie had made the approach

had made more than one approach to people on the project?
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A Yes. He indicated three definite approaches that’
were made.

o Is there any question ;bout that in your mind?

. A No, sir. |

Q Did you ask Dr. Oppenheimer who the-man was who
had made these approaches?

A Yes, I did. I asked him for the name of the man.

c Did he give it to you?

A No, he did not.

Q Did he say why he would not give it to you?

A He stated that this man was a frieml of his, he
felt that no information was leaking out, and he felt that
he did not want to give the man's name under the circumstances

since he felt that it wasn't succewsful in accomplishing his

mission.
Q Were ya anxious to know the name?
A We were. As a matter of fact, ¥ insisted several

times and I told Dr. Oppenheimer that without the knowledge
of that name our activities were going to be made much more
difficult. Since he knew the name of the man, I felt he.
should furnish it to me. I think we broached that subject
through the conversation on several occasions.
. () Why were you so anxious to know the name?
A Without the knowledge of the man, our job was

extremely difficult. We knew definitely that there were
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espiaage activities conducted in favor of the Soviets in that
area. We knew now that there was a new or at least an
. additional effort being exerted through this man. Our
investigative unit was limited in itse2f, and if we had to
start digging to find out who this man is, it would put a
tremendous burden on us.
1 also felt, if I may say, that Dr. Oppenheimer knew
the name of the man, and it was his duty to report it to me.
Q Did you thereafter send to General Groves a memorandum

on the subject of the importance of obtaining the name of the

contact?
A Y
") A I did.
Q I show you a copy of a memorandum dated 2 September

1843, and ask you if\that is the merorandum to which you refer?
A Yes, this is it.

MR. ROBB: I will read this in the record, if I may,
Mr. Chairman.

"2 September 1943

"Memorandum for: General Groves

"Re: DSM Project (J. R. Oppenheimer)

"], It is essential that name of professor be made

' available in order that investigation can continue properly.
"2, If disposed to talk also request namés of

individuals contacted by professor io order to eliminate

unnecessary investigation and following of leads which may
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come to the attention of this office. I f names of these
people are known this office will not have to condiuct
investigation into their activities if such names ¢ome to
our attention through our own channels.

"3. It is desirable to have names of any people
whom it .is felt could be contacted by the professor,
particularly CP members or sympathizers.

"4, Has anyone appréached JRO at any time while he
was connected with the project? 1I1f so, was it the professor,
Eltenton, or some other party?

"B.T.P."

BY MR. ROBB:

Q B.T.P. was what?

A My initials.

Q I call your attention to the use of the word
"professor’”. To whom did you refer by that?

A The unidentified person. I was told by Dr.
Oppenheimer that the man was a member of the staff, or had been
a member of the staff of the University of California.

Q "If disposed to talk", what did you mean by that?
¥ho was_supposed to talk?

"A If when General Groves would ask Dr. Oppenheimer
for information, and if Dr. Oppenheimer felt he would give
additional information, to getadditional information we requested.

Q "Also request names of individuals contacted by
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the professor'; the individuals were the three contacts?

A Those three cmtacts, yes.

Q Dr. Oppenheimer did not give you those names?

A No, he did not. He told me at the time that two of
the men were down at "Y" that we called it, that was Los
Alamos, and that one man had either already gone or was to
go to Site X, which I believe was Oak Ridge.

& Did you conduct any investigation as a resuit of that
lead?

A Yes, we did. That was another tedious project we had.
We had to go through files, try fo find out who'was going to
go to Site X, We determined, and I took measures to stop -
at least I asked General Groves to stop the man's movement
to that area.

0 What man?

A Tke third man. I can't recall the name at this time.
I am not sure of the name.

Q@  But ,you felt that you had identified somebody who
was about to be moved to the site?

A Yes. As a matter of fact, we did. But at this
point I don't remember the man's name.

Q And you took steps to stop that transfer?

o

Yes.
Q Thinking that he was the man referred to?
A

That is right. He was the only one who at the time
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was scheduled to go.

Q Referring to the third paragraph of your membrandum,
"Cp ﬁembers", that means what?

A Communistlparty members.

Q Fourth paragraph, 'Has any one approached JRO at any
time while he was connected with the project?"” Calling
your attention to that, Colonel, did you have any suggesion
from your interview with Dr. Oppenheimer that he himself had
been approached?

A Yes.

Q Beg pardon?

A Yes.
Q What was that?
A He told me that this unidentified professor contacted

him.

Q Yes, but aside from that.

A We felt that this was a vulnerable situationand
if he was contacted.by one, he may be contacted by others.

Q Will you tell us whether or not, Colonel, you
believed there was any connection between this episode o
Dr. Oppenheimer's statement to you and the situation which
had recently arisen involving Lomanitz?

A  Definitely.

Q Would you explain that to us?

A When we first met in the room, I asked Dr. Oppenheimer
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or said that I was interested in a certain incident. He
immediately started telling me about the Lomanitz situation.
I told him then it was not the Lomanitz situation that I was
interested in, but other contacts that had been made. If I
am in order, as a result of the study of the interview, it
was my definite feeling at the time that the interview
Dr. Oppenheimer had with me was the result of Lomanitz's
situation. I felt definitely at the time that Dr. Oppenheimer
knew or had reason to know that we were investigating or making
an investigation which was more thorough than a normal back-
ground investigation. It was my opinion that Dr. Oppenheimer
wanted to present this information to us for the purpose of
relieving any pressure that may be brought hn him for further
investigation of his personal situation.

Q In that connection, did’you prepare a memorandum
for General Groves?

A Yes, I did.

¢ I will show you a copy of a péper dated 2 September
1943, with initials "B.T.P." and ask you if that is the
memorandum?

A Yes.

MR. ROBB: I will read this in the record, Mr.

Chairman.

"2 Sepember 1943

"Memorandum for: General Groves
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"Re: DSM Project (J. R. Oppenheimer)

"], This office is preparing a memorandum in which
it is pointed out that O's contact with Colonel Pash,
through Lieut. Johnson, was the result of the following
circumstances:

"a. Lomanitz was denied deferment.

"b. Lomanitz told O of this and also told him that
he felt he was being investigated for subvérsive activities.

"c. O could conclude that this office is conducting
some investigation and would probably determine that contacts
have been made.

. "d, O felt that it was safer to come out with the
information at the present time in order to clear himself of
any future investigation.

"e. In this way he would retain the confidence of .
the Army personnel responsible for this project.

"2. Above, briefly, is a thesis of a memorandum
which will be presented to you through Colonel Lansdale in a
more detailed form. This office is of the opinion thatO
had an ulterior motive in furnishing this infarmatimnat such a
late date and the above explanation seens reasonable. It is
not believed that he should be taken fully into the confidence

of the Army in the matters pertaining to subversive

investigations.n
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BY MR. ROBB:

Q "0" in that memorandum refers to whom?

A Dr. Oppenheimer.

Q You mentioned a late date. What did you mean by that?

A When I had the interview with Dr . Oppenheimer, he
told me that the incident which he was reporting to me had
happened a few months prior to this interview.

MR. GRAY: Excuse me. Was this memorandum
signed or identified?

MR. ROBB: This is a copy ; have here. I assume
it was signed.

MR. GRAY: You didn't read any initials.

MR. ROBB: Signed"B.T.P." That was you,Colonel?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. ROBB: 1 previously identified it.

MR. GRAY: I am sorry.

BY MR. ROBB:

Q Coionel, had you had this information about the
approach to Dr. Oppenheimer immediately after it had taken
place, would that have made a difference to you in your
investigation?

A It certainly would.

Q What dif ference would it have made?

A Not having the name, I felt at the time, and I think

I still feel impeded seriously pur investigation.
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Q Why?

A. We bad to start an investigation of a factor which
was unknown to us. We knew that there was a man, a professor.
There were many professors at the University of California.
The only thing I knew was that he was not connected with the
Radiation Laborabry, which put it into the University of
California, and the staff was tremendous there.

Q Did Captain DeSilva subsequent or at about that
time prepare the analysis to which you referred in your
memorandum of 2 September?

A He had, yes.

Q I will show you a photostat of a document dated
2 September 1943, '"'Memorandum for Lt. Col. B. T. Pash.
Subject: 'J. R. Oppenheimer'", signed by"I&.DeS.?- Is
that the amlysis prepared by Captain DeSilva? |

A Those are his initials. Yes, this is the memorandum
that he prepared.

Q Did you trasmit that to General Groves through Col.

Lansdale?
A I did.
© I will show you a memorandum dated 6 September 1943,

signed "Boris T. Pash'', and ask you if that is your letter
of transmittal of Captain DeSilva's membrandum?

A Yes, it is.

MR. ROBB: These two documents have already been
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read into the record, Mr. Chairman.

, MR. SILVERMAN: Yes, pages 877 and following,

if they are the documents you are talking about.
MR. ROBB: I am sure they are.
BY MR. ROBB:

Q When did you finally learn the name of the unknown
professor?

A The name of the unknown prdfessor wvas furnished to me
by General Groves' office. 1 can't recall the exact time.

I presume it was either the end of Sepfember some time--

Q End of when?

A September or maybe October. I am not sure of the
time.

Q Let me see if I can refresh your recollection. I
will show you a photostat of a teletYpe addressed to the Area
Engineer, University of Caiifbrnia, Berkeley, California,
attention Lt. Lyall Johnson, signed ''Nichols'", and ask if
looking at that you are able now to refresh your recollection
about it?

A Yes, this is the way we received the information.

0 When was the date?

A 13 Becember. I must say that I had -~ there was
another somewhat previous -- this never reached me.

Q That never did?

A No.
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Q How did you get the information?

A I mver got the information; I was gone.

r Do'you recall that you did receive the information
before you went or not?

A I think I was only informally informed of certain
suspicions bﬁt I bad never received that information.

Q When did you leave there?

A About the 26th or 25th of November. It was the
end of November.

Q ‘By the way, was there a Lt. Murray in your organiza-
tion?

A Yes, Lt. Murray was in charge of my investigative
unit.

Q I will sow you a photostat of a memorandum
dated San Francisco, California, November 22, 1943, bearhg
the signature of James S. Murray. Is that your Lt. Murray?

A That is the same Lt. Murray.

Q I notice that the title of tis memorandum is,
"Memo for the Officer in Charge. Subject DSM Project. Re
Possible Identity.of the Unnamed Professor Referred to by
Dr. J. Robert Oppenheimer."

Do you recall having seen that memorandum?
A Yes. Lt. Murray's memoranda to me were addressed

in this form, ahd I recall this memorandum.

Q That would indicate at that time at least you had
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not received the name of the unidentified professor?
A No, sir.
‘ o Had no, would it not, Colonel?
A Yes, sir.

MR, ROBB: I will ask Mr. Rolander if he might
read tﬁis memorandum, |

MR. ROLANDER: "San Francisco, California. November
22, 1943."

MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. Robb, do you think if we saw
the memorandum itmight be unnecessary to read it? I don't
know what is in it.

MR. ROBB: No, I think we better have it in the
record just for completeness, if the Chairman doesn't mind.

MR.'ROLANDER: "Memmrandum for the Officer in Charge.

*Subject: DSM Project.

"RE Possible Idnentity of the Unnamed Professor

'Referred to by Dr. J. Robert Oppenheimer."

The date is November 22, 1943.

MR. SILVERMAN: Have you an extra copy?

MR. ROLANDER: I am sorry, I do not.

MR. SILVERMAN: Can I look over your shoulder, Mr.

‘ : Rolander?
MR. GRAY: I will follow the reading of it. 1Is

this a copy that counsel can foliow?

MR. ROLANDER: Mr. Chairman, I didn't get a chance
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to glance at it again. It may refer to the FBI,_and,I

would have to note that we could not make any mention of the
FBI. This may not be the case, but I would have to read it
through to be sure. |

MR. GRAY: I will ask you to look atit, and see
if there is anything you will have to omit or not.

I can tell you there is some material you will
want to leave out. Page 3.

MR. ROBB: We had not gotten to that yet, sir.
That seems to be the only sentence or paragraph.

MR. GRAY: Can you give pages 1 and 2?

MR. ROBB: While we are at it, ﬁr. Chairman, I see
attached to that memorandum is a covering memorandum dated
27 November,1943, signed Boris T. Pash. 1 will show that to
the Colonel and ask him if he sent fhat memora ndum.

THE WITNESS: No, I did not. This was sent by a
then Lt. or Captain Maharg.

BY MR. ROBB:

Q He signed your name?

A Yes. In this investigation he was acting for me.
Q Do his initials appear? |
A His initials appear below.

Q Is there any question that this memorandm was sent

on the date indicated enclosing the memar andum prepared by Lt.

Murray?
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A From this record it appears that this was sent. I
would have no persanal knowledge of the fact.

MR. ROBB: I think we might read them both, Mr.
Chairman, while we are abouf it.

MR. GARRISON:  May we h;ve a chance to read this
before it is read on the record, Mr. Chairman?

MR, GRAY: Yes.

MR. ROBB: Mr. Chairman, while my friends are
reading that, I might say the purpose of offering this is to
show for the Board the attempts that were being made to
identify this contact ami what the knowledge was at that time.

MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. Robb, I represent only Dr.
Oppenheimer, but there are a lot of names of people here I
never heard of . I wonder whether in fairness to these
people it might not be better when you read the memorandum
to say there are then given the names of ten, eleven or
whatever number of people there is, of whom Professor
Chevalier is one, or is not one.

MR. ROBB: He is not. I don't care about that. I
don't know who these people are, either.

MR. GRAY: Let me suggest that the first two
paragraphs be read, which I take it do not involve persons
who may not be concerned in this proceeding, that then counsel

indicate that there is paragraph one name of an

individual with seven or eight lines of information
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about him, paragraph two, and so on. I think counsd.'s‘
point that Colonel Pash's office or the Office of the
intelligence people was involved in very extensive investigation
to ascertain the name of the unidentified professor is a well
taken point. I see no reason --

MR. ROBB: I have no desire to read them in. 1
take it the paragraph about Dr. Weinberg might be read.

MR. GRAY: I think there is no reason why you
should not indicaté when you come to his namé.

MR. ROBB: Yes, sir.

MR, ROLLANDER: May I proceed?

MR. GRAY: Please.

MR. ROLANDER: San F¥Francisco, Calffornia. November
22, 1943" --

MR. GRAY: Did you read the covering memorandum?

MR. ROLANDER: I beg your pardon. The covering
memorandum or letter:

"Army Service Forces, Headquarters, Ninth Service
Command, Office of the Director, Intelligence Division,
Forward Echelon, Presidio of San Francisco. '

The initials "SPRIC:FE."

The datg, "27 November 1943."

The written initials of "CLC" in the right hand
corner. There is also some written chment on the left

hand corner which, since it mentions a neme, I wil omit.
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MR. GRAY: May I call your attention also to what

would appear to be the initials "YL" next to the intials
"CLC".

MR. ROLANDER: "November 27, 1943.

"Subject: DSY Project. Possible Identity of
Unnamed Professor Referred to by Dr. J. R. Oppenheimer.

"To: Lt. Col. John R. Lansdale, Jr., 2C 634
Pentagon Building, Washington, D. C.

"Eaclosed for your information and files find
memorandum for the Office in Charge, dated November 22, 1943,
subject as above, for the Director, Intelligence Division.

Signature "Boris T. Pash." Typed "Boris T. Pash,
Lt. Col. M.I." and then an initial beneath there which was
referred to by Colonel Pash, '"Chief, Counter Intelligence
Branch.'" One enclosure: '"Duplicate, memo as indicated.
cc Captain Maharg with enclosure."

The memorandum itself:

"San Francisco, California.

"November 22, 1943.

“Memorandum for the Office in Charge.

"Subject: DSM Project.

"Re: Possible ldentity of Unnamed Professor
Referred to by Dr. J. Robert Oppenheimer.

"Reference is made to various conversations and

interviews between Dr. J. R. Oppenheimer, head of DSM Project
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at Site Y, and Lt. Col. Boris T. Pash, Chief, CIB, Forward
Echelon, Nifith Service Command. Reference is also made to
conversations and interviews between Dr. J. R. Oppenheimer
and Lt. Col. John R. lLansdale, Jr., Chief, Inves tiga tions
Branch, CIG, MIS. During the above named interviews, Dr.
Oppenheimer has frequently made reference to a professor
located at the University of California campus who acted as a
go-between for George Eltenton, and three unnamed persons
working on the DSM project in an endeavor to gain infarmation for
Eltenton to transmit to the Soviet Government. On all‘of the
above named occasions Dr. Oppenheimer has refused to name
the Professor or the three persons who were contacted.
Dr. Oppenheimer stated that the three persons did not disclose
any information, and therefore they are not pertinent to
any investigation promulgatéd by Military Intelligence Services.
Efforts of this office during the past month have been
directed in an attempt to ascertain the identity of the
professbr contact. A record check of all professors and
associates in both the physics and chemistry departments at
the University of California was made with the Federal Bureau
of Investigation and the results fhereof contained in a
progress report from this office dated October 20; 1943.
A continued survey and check has been made and it is believed
that it is entirely possible that the professor might be one

of the following."
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"1." and then a name and seven lines of discussion.

"2." a name and seven lines of discussion.

"3." a name and six lines of discussion.

"4.” The name appears '"Joseph W. Weinberg." It
states further: "Weinberg has been known to commit at least

one espionage act, and on June 28, 1943, he was awarded a Ph.-D.

degree by the University of California, and assumed an

associate professorship there."”

"5." A name and five lines of discussion.
"6." A name and seven lines of discussion.
"7." A name and six lines of discussion.

"8." A name and eight lines of discussion.

"9." A name and five lines of discussion.

MR, ROBB: May it be agreed, Mr. Chairman, that
none of the names was the name of Haakon Chevalier?

MR. SILVERMAN: Certainly not on these two pages.

MR. GRAY: Tht name does not appear in this
memorandum,

MR. ROBB: That is right, it does not aﬁpea.r in the
memorandum.

MR. GRAY: I would suggest that actually the remainder
'of this memorandum is not pertinent to the question being put
to the witness.

MR. ROBB: 1 think not, Mr. Chairman. There is no

point of cluttering up the record.
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MR. GRAY: I see there is no point of cluttering up
the record.

MR. SILVERMAN: It has nothing to do with Dr.
Oppenheimer. |

MR. GRAY: No, with other individuals. Let me say
it does mention some familiar names, Lomanitz, Friedman,
Weinberg, Bohm, but really not connected with what we are
talking about.

MR. SILVERMAN: Could I take a look at that part
of it to see whether something occurs to me about it, which
perhaps may not.

MR. GRAY: I think you will have to accept my
assurance that it would not help you to see the remainder. It
is not really related.

MR. ROBB: Mr. Chairman, would you like to break
for lunch?

MR. GRAY: One of the members of the Board has an
engagement. Am I‘right in asasuming that you are not at this
point finished with your direct examination?

MR. ROBB: That is correct.

MR. GRAY: Therefore I think we should recess for
lunch at this time, and we shdll return at 2 o'clock.

(Thereupon at 12:35 p.m., a recess was taken until

2:00 p.m., the same day.)
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AFTERNOON SESSION 2:00 P.M,

MR. GRAY: Let the record show that Mr. Garrison
is not present at the beginning of the hearing.‘
Will you proceed, Mr. Robb?
Vhereupon,
BORIS T. PASH
the witness on the stand at the time of taking the recess
resumed the stand and testified further as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION (Cont.)
BY MR. ROBB:
Q Colonel, I think I asked you before the noon recess
when you‘first learned the name of Haakon Chevalier, and I
believe you said some time in September.

A Early October or September.

Q In what connection did that name come to your
attention?
A We were receiving reports of other investigative

agencies relating to Communist activities in the area.
I don't recall exactly who dglivered those reports to us, but
they probably came from Washington, from General Grovgs'
office.

Ov What was the purpose of the report about Dr.
Chevalier? I don't mean for you to give details.

A It concerned Communist activities in the area. It

concerned contacts with people who were either known or
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suspected Communists.

(8 I doh't want to lead you but I am quite sure you
are not very easily led anyway. Was the burden of the rebort
that Dr. Chevalier was in some way connected with Communist
activities?

A That is right.

Q The identification of Dr. Chevalier as the unkmown
professor came later?

A That is right. It didn't come to me then.

¢ It did not come to you?

A No.

Q Would you say it came after you left Berkeley?

A When I returned ffom a short tour in Europe, after
being in the Mediterranean Theater, I was brought up tb date
on certain things that transpired in my absence.

Q Is that when you first learned the identity of the
unnamed professor?

A Yes, sir, I believe so.

Q When did you first begin giving attention and
coysideration to Dr. Oppenheimer in connection with your
investigation of espionage and Communist activities in Berkeley?

A At the early part of the investigation. It was
eithér late in May or some time early in June.

MR. GRAY: What year?

THE WITNESS: 1943, sir. Excuse me.
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BY MR. ROBB:

Q I will show you a copy of a report with the type-
written signature, "Boris T. Pash" dated 29 June 1943,
and ask.you whether you recall preparing that report?.

A Yes.

MR. ROBB: Do you have a copy of this for our friend
acrosslthe way?

MR. ROLANDER: I don't believe this can be read
in its entirety.

MR. ROBB: I am sorry; this report has some
references to FBI materials.

BY MR. ROBB:

Q At all events, Colonel, the subject of this report
is "Julius Robert Oppenheimer", is thatcorredt?

A Yes.

Q Without going into details about it, it concerns
investigative information in respect of Dr. Oppenheinmer, is
that right? |

A That is right.

Q During the time that you were cmducting this
investigation, Colonel -~

MR, SILVERMAN: Do you suppose you could read the
portions fhat relate to Dr. Oppenheimer?
MR. ROBB: The whole thing relates to Dr. Oppenheimer.

MR. SILVERMAN: Is there some way we could see it
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without the FBI part?

MR. GRAY: At this mommnt, I think this is true. The
witness has had his recollection refreshed with resbect to
a memorandum which he wrote.

MR. ROBB: Yes, sir.

MR. GRAY: I don't know what you propose to do.

"MR. ROBB: Nothing further.

MR. GRAY: Can you do this in a way which will
not make it necessary to read it into the record?

MR. ROBB: My purpose for referring to it was to
have some specific date in the record to show that by at least
June 29, 1943, Dr. Oppenheimer was under investigation by
Colonel Pash's prganization in respect of espionage, that is all.

MR. SILVERMAN: In respect of suspected espionage
by Dr. Oppenheimer. | |

| MR. ROBB: In the cmtext of the espionage investigation
that was going on. Is that correct, folonel?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. SILVERMAN: I really think thatin fairness it
would be well to read as much of that memorandum into the
record as can be read by skipping the references of the FBI.

We are somewhat at$ a disadvantage. Our friend on the other side
bave the memorandum before them. Doubtless the members of the
Board have it before them.

MR. GRAY: 1I don't know whether te members o the
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Board have or not.

MR. ROBB: Will you take the best I can dé on it,
Mr. Silverman?

MR. SILVERMAN: Yes, sir.

MR. ROBB: I will do the best I can, and I think it
will be all right.

Memorandum June 29, 1943.

"Subject: Julius Robert Oppenheimer

"To: Lieut. Colonel Lansdale, Jr., Room 2C 654, Pent-
agon Building, Washington, D. C.

"1. 1Information available to this office indicates
that subject may still be connected with the Communist Party."

Then I omit the next sentence.

"This is based on the following specific information.

"a. Bernadette Doyle, organizer of the Communist
‘ Party in Alameda County, California, has referrgd to subject
and his brother, Frank, as being regularly registered within
the Party.

"b. It is known that the Alameda County Branch of the
Party was concerned over the Communist affiliation of subject
and his brother, as it was not considered prudent for this
connection to be known in view of the highly secret work on
which both are engaged.

. "2, Results of surveillances conducted on subject,

upon arrival in San Francisco on June 12, 1943, indicate
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further possible Communist Party connections.

"a. Subject met and is alleged to have spent
considerable time with one Jean Tatlock, the record of whom
is attached.

"b. He attempted to contact by phone and was later
thought to have visited a David Hawkins, 242 - 32nd Avenue,

San Francisco, a Party member who has contacts with both
Bernadette Doyle and Steve Nelson. A preliminary report on
Hawkins is attached.

"3. Further investigations of the possible connections
of subject with the Communist Party are being carried out by
this office."

I omit the next sentence.

"4. 1In view of the fact that this office believes
that subject still is or may be connected with the Communist
Party, and because of the known interest of the Communist Party
in this project, together with the Interest of the USSR in it,
the following possibilities are submitted for your consideration:

"a. All indications on the parf of Communist Pérty
members who have expressed themselves with regard to subject
lead this office to believe that the Communist Party is making
a qefinite effort to dfficially divorce subjeét’s
affiliation with the Party and subject, himself, is not indi-
cating in any way interest in the Party. However, if subject's

affiliation with the Party is definite and he is a member of
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that Party, there is a possibility of his developing a

scientific work to a certain extent then turning it over to

the Party without submitting any phase of it to the United
States Government. It is the understanding of this office that
subject is the only person who knows the exact progress and
results of this research work, and, as a result, is difficult to
check.

"b. In view of the above.there exists another
possibility that while subject may not be furnishing
information to the Communist Party direct he may be making that
information available to his other contacts who, in turn, may
be furnishing or will furnish such information, as it is made
available to them by subject, to the Comﬁunist Party for
transmission to the USSR.

"5. On the basis of the presentstatus of this case
and with the limited knowledge available to this office on
the organizatioh and administration of the project, the
following possible plans of action are recommended:

"a. That every effort be made to find a suitable
replacement for subject and that as soon as such replacement
is trained that subject be remved completely from tke project
and dismtssed from employment by the United States Government.

"b. That subject be told that in view of the
importance of the project and the possibility of an accident

which may incapacitate or eliminate him, that a second in
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command be assigned to subject who will share in the knowledge
of all developments and processes of inﬁerest in the project.

"c. That shject be called to Washington for purposes
of being interviews by Chief, MIS, and General Groves; that
subject first be told of the Espiorge Act and its ramifications;
of the knowledge MIS has of Communist affiliations and that
this Government will not tolerate any leakage of information,
either by subject or any of his associates to the Communist
Party, whether this be for tﬁe purpose of transmitting
information as such or of 1nforming the Communist Party of
the progress made by its members and, further, that this
govennment intends to maintain rigid control of the development
of the project.

"6, It is the opinion of this office that subject's
personal inclinations would be to protect his own future and
reputation and the high degree of honor which would be his if
his present work is successful, and, consequently, it is felt
that he would lend every effort to cooperating with the
government in any plan vhich would leave him in charge. It is,
therefore, recommended that the plan outlined in paragraph
5-¢ be adopted upon compltion of a thorough investigation of
subject presently being conducted by this office. This
investigaidén is being made to secure all possible information
on subject's background, particularly his past and pesent

affiliations with the Communist Party.

-
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"It is further recommended that regardless of the

plan adopted, or whether any of the above proposed plans are
adopted, that subject be told that there exists a possibility
of violence on the part of Axis agents who may wish to interfere
with this project and, therefore, the War Department dewms it
advisable to assign to subject two bodyguards. These bodyguards
will be selected from specially trained Counter Intelligence
Corps agents who will not only serve as bodyguards for subject
but also as undercover agents for this office.
"For the A C of 5, G-2,
"Boris T. Pash, Lt. Col., M.I., Chief, Counter
Intelligence Branch.
"2 Incls:
"$1l - Memo, 6-29-43, re Jean Tatlock (dup)
"42 - Memo, 6-29-43, re David Hawkins (dup)
"ee: Capt. H. K. Calvert."
BY MR. ROBB:
Q Colonel, do you know whether or not the two body~-
guards were assigned? .
A No,I don't.
Q Let me ask &ou as an expert --
) 4 I don't think so.
Q Let @ ask you, Colonel, as an expert in these
matters, how effective can a surveillance be to prevent the

transmission of information?
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A In my opinion, it is impossible to maintaih a 100
per cent surveillance or maintain a surveillance which would
assure 100 per cent success. |

Q Why?

A There .are so many éifferent ways in which information
can be transmitted and in this particular instance we did
not have any qudlified men who knew the technical field
sufficiently to be able to determine even in an open
conversation if any information is being transmitted.

Q You mean would not understand it?

A That is right.

Q You mention in here a thorough investigation of
subject. Subject being Dr. Oppenheimer?

A Yes, sir.

(o Was that conducted?

A That was in so far as I was in charge there; that
was discontinued on instructions from Washington.

Q When?

A I believe some time in the middle of Auguét.

Q Was any reason given for that?

A Not to me.

Q Did all the reports cmcerning Communis tic activities
at Berkeley concerning Dr. Oppenheimer come across your desk
while you were there?

A I believe so. During this period I had made some
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short trips. 1In that case either DeSilva or Maharg would act
for me. Normally they tried to bring me up to date when I
returned.

Q You kept yourself thoroughly familiar with the
investigation going on?

A I tried to, yes.

Q On the basis of the information which you had
concerning Dr. Oppenheimer, did you comlder him to be a
security risk?

A Yes, I wmuld.

¢  Did you then?

A Yes, I did.

Q Do you now?

A Yes, I think I do. I do, yes.

Q Going back for a moment to your interview with Dr;
Oppenheimer, you mentioned that he had spoken to you or told
you that this unnamed professﬁr had mentioned someone in
the Russian consnlate, microfilm, the three contacts, two
of them having gone to Los Alamos and one being about to
leave for Oak Ridge; did you have any opinion as to whether
or not Dr. Oppenheimer in those respécts was truthfully report-
ing to you what the unnamed professor had said to him?

A Yes, I wassure of that.

Q You were sure of that?

A Yes .
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Q Why?

A In the first place, Dr. Oppenheim spoke to Lyall
Johnson, telling him that he had something, as Johnson told
me, something important to convey concerning espionage. When
I arranged for the interview and Dr. Oppenheimer came in,
when I told him that I wanted to discuss the incident, he
immediately started discussing Lomanitz with me. When I told
him it was the otlhe incident where other parties may be
interested in this, he immediately started then relating the
information he gave me. I don't think there was any break or
adjustment at the time. I felt he was giving something he
already had or he knew. Furthermore, as I believe 1 stated -
before, and reviewing the situation after a while, I felt
that he had this information and he felt that he wanted to
give it to us because of the fact that he found out we may be
making a rather thorough investigation of the whole project
and the activities. Finally, te information given there was
rather serious and to a certain dxtent detailed. It referred
to a plan. It established a plan that was supposed to be in
existence. It included some details such as the contact,
about the availability of contact with the Soviet consulate
and the reference to a technical device for purposes of
recording what informa tion may be available.

Q What conclusion did you draw from the fact that the

information was in some circumstantial detail? Wit did that
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indicate to you?

A That indicated that it was information already
available to a man, and in a field which probably was more
operational, and therefore I felt, and feel, that‘it was
transmitted to him rather than made up by him.

(o] Do you still feel that way?

A Yes, I do.

Q You had a greatdeal of experiemnce, have you not,
in interrogating witnesées?

A I have had some experience, yes.

Q You have been doing it for years, havalt you?

A For a few years,

Q You have had a great deal of experience in evaluating
statements male by witnesses, have you not, sir?

A Yes, I have.

0 Was there then and is there anything now to . suggest
to you that hié statements to you about these detailé Dr.
Oppenheimer was not giving you an accuraé report of what he
had been told by the unnamed professor?

A No. I had no reason not to believe they were
truthful. |

Q Do you have any now?

No, I only knoﬁ this from newspaper information.

Yes.

> O >

And whether it is correct, I don't know. But I read
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in Dr. Oppenheimer's reply to General Nichols he relates
this incident. I feel that the information which Dr.
Oppenheimer gave me in 1943 was far more damaging to him and
to any of his friends than the information as rel&ted in the
newquper.‘hlf Dr. Oppenheimer wasvnot tellidg the truth

at that time, le was making up a story which would bhe tnore'
damaging to him than it appears the situation was according
to the newspaper item. I don't think that that is a normal
human reaction. I feel that the story as told then -- the
story as related in the newspaper probably is in favor of
Dr. Oppenheimer. In evaluating that, I felt that the
incénsistency there in my mind would favor the truth im the
preliminary interview, the interview of 1943.

Q Would you care to elaborate upon your statement
that you now consider Dr. Oppenhkeimer a security risk?

A As far as I know, Dr. Oppenheimer was affiliated
with Communist front activities. I have reason to feel that
he was a member of the Communist Party. I have seen no
indication which indicates any change from the. 1 feel that
his subposed dropping of the Communist Party activities in
the early part of the war need not necessarily express his sincere
opinias, since that was done by mosit all members of the
Communist Party. As a result of that, I feel that the opinion
I had back in 1943 probably would stand.

Q You say was done by most all members of the Party.
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Just what do you mean by that?

A Members of the Party who came into the service,
members who continued in government work, disclaimed any
affilation with the Party.

0 Colonel, did any incident or episode occur shortly
after your interview with Dr. Oppenheimer which fended to
confirm your doubts about Dr. Oppenheimer?

A There was an incident whichcaused me tovstop
and think. The evaluation was difficult, but the timing
and coincidence was an important factor. Joseph Weinberg
wvrote a note to a man, a Flanigan, also a known Communist,
stating -- in the letter,it was a card,he did not it, but
it was in the letter which he mailed, stating, "'Dear A.
Please don't contact me", or something to that effect. I
can't recall. "Please don't make any contact with me, and
pass this message to S and B, only don't mention any names.
I will take a walk with you when this mattér is all cleared
up.”' That was dated the 6th of September. Of course we
were very amcerned over the entire situation and since
Weinberg had close contact and association with Dr. Oppenheimer
I felt at the time that it was the result of the situation
which culminated in my interview with Dr. Oppenheimer.

Q | How did you interpret the expression "take a.walk
with you"? a ﬁ

A The Conmunist people at the time were trying to
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avoid any discussions. They tried to carry on their discussions
either outside or in an automobile or out on the street.

Q Why?

A In order to avoid detection. They avoided fixed
positions.

Q Colonel, I will ask you what information you can
give us in brief about certain people whose names I will give
you, VWilliam Schneiderman?

A William Schneiderman was one of the top Communist
functionaries in California. His name appeared quite a bit
in the process of our investigation, and it was always
Communist connected. I believe he has been tried and convicted
for advocating the overthrow of the govermment by force and
violence, and has been convicted and if I am not mistaken
is now out on appeal.

Q Rudy Lambert.

A Rudy Lawbert was also in the same class with
Schneiderman, same type of individual. He is now also under
conviction for the same offense.

Q Steve Nelson.

A Steve Nelson, of course, was directly connected
with the espionage efforts at the Radiation Laboratory. He
was convicted in the east for the affense of advocating the

overthrow of the government by force and violence. 1 think he

was convicted and may be serving a jail term now.
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Q Isaac Folkoff?

A Isasc Folkoff is a Communist in the Bay area, I
think in San Fraoacisco -- I am not sure -- and @ was in a
business, I believe, and served as an intermediary.

Q Intermediary for what purpose?

A For contact between Communists.

Q Louise Bransten.

A Louise Bransten is a Communist Party member who has
a record of contacts with Soviet officials. She, according
to reports 1 have read, I think, is independently wealthy
and has served the Communist cause. She is, I think, in the
east noﬁ.

(a Contact with Soviet officials in what connection?

A I presume that the contact with Soviet officials for
the purpose of passing information. She was in contact for
instance with a man, Kheifits, who was a Soviet official in
San Francisco. I think he took the place of the initial
contact of the Soviet official who contacted Nelson.

Q What was his name?

A Ivanov.

Q Joseph Weinberg you have already told us about.

A Yes.

c Dr . Thomas Addis.

A I don't know much abouf Dr. Thomas Addis. He was

a professor at Sanford University, I think. As far as I.can
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recollect there were allegatiors that he was a Communist Party

member .

Q

A

School.

(Mr. Garrison returned to the hearing room.)
BY MR. ROBB:
David Jenkins.

David Jenkins was a member of the California Labor

If I am not mistaken, he was the head of it at one

time in the early Forties.

Q

» O » O >

of the

O » O B O B D

Do you remember his wife's name?

No, I don't.

Did you know of someone named Edith Arnstein?
No, I don't.

John Pitman?

John Pitman, if I am mot mistaken was on tie staff

Peoples World.

What was the Peoples World?

Peoples World was a Communist Party publicatim
Where?

In San Francisco.

Hannah Peters.

The name Peters is familiar,

And her husband, Bernard Peters.

Bernard Peters I know was a scientist, I think, but

I don't know enough about him.

Q

David Adelson,
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A David Adelson was very active in the FAECT, the
union, Federation of Architects, Engineers, Chémists and
Technicians.

Q Do you have any information with respect to his
Communist connections?

A There were rpports of his Communist connections. He
was very active in trying to penetrate the Radiation
Laboratory with members of the union. As a matter of fact, I
think he was one of .the men who were contacted by meanitz
and Weinberg, and so forth, when Lomanitz was inddcted.

Q Kenneth May.

A I remember the namé of Kennehh May as being
connected with the Communist Party. -I don't know any
particulars about him. |
MR. RGBB: That is all I care to ask, Mr. Chairman.
MR. GRAY: ﬂr. Silverman. |

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. SILVERMAN:
Colonel Pash, how often have you met Dr. Oppenlieimer?
Once, for this interview.

That was that meeting of August 26, 19437

> O = D

Yes
Q And as far as you can recall dntil today that is
the only time you have ever seen him in your life?

A Physically, yves.
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Q I think you gave some testimony about four people,

Messrs. Lomanitz, Bohm, Friedman.

A And Weinberg.

Q And Weinberg, yes. Those people were employed at
the Radiation Laboratory?

A That is right.

c In Berkeley.

A In Bekkeley.

[ They were not employed at Los Alamos?

A Not to my knowledge.

Q So far as you know, did Dr. Oppenheimer have any
responsibility for their employment at Berkeley?

A I don't know enough about personnel administration
there. I recall in reviewing the document s available to me
at the time that I thikk he made some comments with reference
to Lomanitz.

Q He didn't hire these people?

A I don't know who hired them.

Q He was not the Director of the Radiation Laboratory
the way he was at Los Alamos?

A Not to my knowledge.

(o] You said he made some comments about Lomanitz.

I think you said he made some, I don't remember the word
now, protest, pressure or something abdut it, when Lamanitz 'S

draft deferment was terminate d?
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A When it was about to be terminated.

Q Did anybody else complain about it?

A Weinberg and Bohm, to my knowledge.

Q Did Lomanitz's superiors on his job complain aboutit?
A I think that Dr. Lawrence may have.

° Did anyone else of his superiors?

A That 1 don't know.

o You haw recently had occasion to refresh your
recollection as to what Dr. Oppenheimer did about this matter,
have you not?

A Yes.

Q You have not had occasion to refresh your recollection
as to whether -- before I finish this question, I want to be
perfectly clear I am not and do not inknd to make any
accusations about any people I am naming here, because I
considerall their actions perfectly innocent -- you have not
had occasion to refresh yourrecollection recently as to what
Dr. Lawrence did about protesting or objecting to Mr,
Lomanitz's deferment?

A The only way that I knew that Dr. Lawrence may have
taken part is because Lomanitz mentioned in discussing the
matter that Dr. Lawrence was going to state that he was
needed or something to that effect.

o] You knew that Dr. Lawrence was very anxious to see

- that the work of his laboratory went well?




A  Yes, I realize that.

0 And Dr. Oppenheimer was very anxious td see that the
work of his labératory went well?

A I realize that.

Q And neither one of them would be very happy to lose
a good technical man?

4 I presume so.

(o) And were you told that Dr. Oppenheimer said that
if Lomanitz'%is drafted, Dr. Lawrence will want to take somebo@y

from Dr. Oppenheimer's staff?

A Yes.

Q And Dr. Oppenheimer didn't like that.

A That is right.

Q And he so wrote you?

A I know he stated that. I don't know whether he wrote

it.

Q I think that is in the record. By the way, in the
course of refreshing your recollection, have you also listened
to the recording of your convetsation?

A Yes.

Q When did you do that?

A I think about two days ago.-

0 And you play it over once?

A Yeé.

Q I would like to come to the incident of September 6
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in which Joseph Weinberg wrote a ngte to Flanigan somewhat to
the effect, "Dr. A. Please don't contact me, and pass this
message to S and B, and I will take a walk with you" amd so on.

A Yes .

Q As far as you know, was A; S or B Dr. Oppenheimer?

A No.

o You connected this with your talk with Dr. Oppenheimer?

A Yes, with the situation around that time, which
culminated in Dr. Oppenheimer's interview.

o One reason for that was the timing?

A Tha t is right.

Q Dr. Oppenheimer's interview with you was on August

26th?
A That is right.
Q And this letter was 1l days later, September 67
A Yes.

Q Obviously you don't know what other problems Mr.
Weinberg was worried about in that period, or what else may have
happened in that 11 days to stir him up.

A That is right.

Q I think you said that another reason you connected
was because of Dr. Weinberg's close contact and association
with Dr. Oppenheimer. Would you tell us so far as you know
what Dr. Weinberg's association with Dr. Oppenheimer was?

A Yes. He was a student of Dr. Oppeneimer's at the
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University. 'En.twq,l think, instances when problems arose
for him on one instance he went with Bohm to see Dr.
Oppenheimer. That was on the 2nd of September, in connection
with the Lomanitz situation. And from the conversations that
were had in the group, my impression was that he discussed
Dr. Oppenheimer as sort of a man they could advise with. I
'recall that was not the 2nd of September. It may have been
duking Dr. Oppenheimer's trip to San Francisco that Bohm and
Weinberg saw him on which they said they also feel that the
draft may reach them, too.

Q They also felt, too, what -- the draft?

A The drgft may reach them because of their activities.

lQ Would you try to identify the approximate time of
this? You say you think it was not September?

A No, if I am not mistaken it was during the trip
of Dr. Oppenheimer to San Francisco.

Q When was that?

A Itwas in those dates of 26th of 27th of August.

Q So that too was about ten days before?‘

A Yes.

Q Did Lt. Johnson go to Dr. Oppenheimer and question
him about Eltenton or did Dr. Oppenheimer come to Lt. Johnson?

A As Lt. Johnson related it to me, I don't know, he

said Dr. Oppenheimer told me. I don't know thedetails of

where they met or what the circumstances surrounding that was.
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Q Did Lt. Johnson tell you that Dr. Oppenheimer at
that very first interview mentioned Mr. Eltenton's name?

A No. I don't know whbther it was the first interview
he had with Johnson.

Q Wasn't your interview with Dr. Oppenheimer the day after?

A Excuse me. I thought you meant Johnson's first
interview with Dr. Oppenheimer. It is first because it
preceded mine is what you mean, is that'right?

o Yes.

A I understand.

Q And accérding to Lt. Gohnson's report, Dr.
Oppenheimer came to Lt. Johnson and mentioned Eltenton's name?

A Yes. I don't recall that. He mentioned the espionage
activities.

o You do not now recall whether Dr. Oppenheimer
mentioned to Lt. Zohnson Eltenton's name on the day before?

A No, I emsorry I don't.

Q In your one interview with Dr. Oppenheimer, Dr.
Oppenheimer did mention the name?

A Yes.

Q He volunteered the name?

A Yes.

(A At that time --

MR. ROBB: Mr. Chaiman, I don't mean to interfere but

I think the question whether he volunteered the name is a
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conclusion. I don't wish to concede -~
| MR, SILVERMAN: There have been a fair number of
conclusions suggested by you, Mr. Robb.

MR. ROBB: There cettainly have.

MR. GRAY: Proceed, Mr. Silverman.

MR. SILVERMAN: Thank you, sir.

BY MR. SILVERMAN: /

Q At the time that Dr. Oppenheimer gave you Mr. Eltenton's
name, was Mr. Eltenton already under surveillance by ymu?

A We had no ¢ ammnection with Mr. Eltenton. We had his
name, but he was not under our surveillance. He was not
connected with the Radiation Laboratory as far as I know.

Q So that when Dr. Oppenheimer gave you this name,
this was an important piece of information for you?

A No, we had his name, but not in connection with our
our investigation.

A Did you have his name as someone who might be
mixed up in an espionage attempt?

A Yes, as a Communist Party member. We would not have
thos e details as to his activities, because we were not
conducting the investigation.

‘Q You were conducting an investigation about espionage.

A Yes, by the limitation agreement we did not
investigate people who were not connected with the military

or specifically with the Radiation Laborabry.




2824

Q So far as you know was there any information -- I
withdraw that.

You did not have any information that connected
Mr. Eltenton with ah espionage attempt or approach?

A We had information which conntected him with the
contacts of the Soviet contacts, but I personally in my office
did not have the details of those contacts.

Q And did Dr. Oppenlieimer say to you that the reason
he was not giving you the name of the professor was that he
thought the man was innocent?

A He thought that this was not serious and that he
had not achieved anything.

Q And of course Dr. Oppenheimerwas very wrong not to
give you that name.

A Yes.

Q And I think we would all agree wih that. Do you have
any information of any leakage of restricted data through
Dr. Oppenheimer to any unauthorized person?

MR, ROBB: May I have that read back?
(Qus tion read by the reporter.)

THE WITNESS: No.

BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q And Dr. Oppenheimer did tell you that on thq
one instance when the professor approached him, he refused to

have anything to do with it?
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A Yes, he told me that.

Q And some time in 1943, he did give the professor's

A Yes.

Q We all agree that Dr. Oppenheimer exercised poor
judgment, indeed, and was very wrong not to give you the name
of Professor Chevalier. Against thgt agreement by everyone
here, I would like to ask you these questions.

MR. GRAY: Waita minute. I take it that everyone
here includes the members of this Board. The hearing is being
conducted for the information of the members o this Board in
the discharge of its functions. I as Chairman have been
extremely lenient, perhaps unduly so, in allowing counsel to
express an opinion. This is not the first time that you have
said, Mr. Silverman, that everyone here agrees on something.

I should like to ask you please to refrain from
expressions of opinioms, and not to try to give a witness
an indication that you speak for anybody but yourself, if you
are expressing an opinion.

MR. SILVERMAN: Very well, sir. I am sorry.

MR. GRAY: It is all right; proceed.

BY MR. SILVERMAN:

Q You have had a good deal of experience with
security and intelligence matters in the Jgst 12 or 13 years.

A I have had some experience, yes.
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Q You were pretty new at security matters in 19437

A No, I don't think so. |

Q You had a couple ofyears of experience?

A I have had past experience, too.

Q I assume it is fair to say that in the last 12 or 13

years you have learned a good deal about security and
intelligence work?

A Yes, I have.

A And perhaps your own opinions have to some extent
changed or crystalized over that period?

A Opinions as to operational procedures?

Q Yes, and the right things for people to do with
respect to security and so on.

A No, I don't think they have changed much as to the
right things to do.

Q Do you believe it possible that Dr. Oppenheimer's
opinions have changed over th#t period?

A I don't think I can speak for Dr. Oppenheimer.

Q You have only seen him once in your life.

A That is right.

Q Do you beliwe that his record since 1943 should
properly be weighed against his admitted mistake and failure
to make a prompt, frank and full report in 1943, to determine
whether he is now a security risk?

A I don't know which record you are referring to.
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Q Vhatever his activities have been since 1943 with

which of course you are not familiar.

A Yos. I again think that is the position of the
Board --

Q Exactly. -

A -- to answer, not mine.

MR. ROBB: I am sorry. I didn't get that.

TIEWITNESS: I said that is not my position to answer
that.

MR. SILVERMAN: That is all. Thank you.

MR. GRAY: Colonel Pash, I would make reference now
to your interview with Dr. Oppenheimer. I don't have the date
fixed in my mind, but the only interview you had with him.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

MR. GRAY: In your earlier testimony,ll believe you
indicated that with respect to this interview, Lt. Johnson
reported to you that he had receivedsome information and you
then decided you wished to talk personally to Dr. Oppenheimer.

THE %ITNESS: Yes. Lt. Johnson said he received
it from Dr. Oppenheimer.

MR. GRAY: In the beginning ©f your interview, it
seemed to you that Dr. Oppenheimer thought you wanted to talk
to him about Lomanitz?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

MR. GRAY: But that the substance of the interview
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concerned the so-called Chevalier episode.

THE WITNBESS: I may not quite understand you.

MR, GRAY: I am afraid it was not a good question.
In the beginning of your interview with Dr. Oppenheimer, there
was some mention of Lomanitz, ad then you had to make it plain
to Dr. Oppenheimer you wanted to talk about the Chevalier
incident.

THE WITNESS: About the incident which eventually
involved Chevalier.

MR. GRAY: Yes. And you testified also, I think,
that it may have occurred to you at the time that the reason
Dr. Oppenheimer volunteered to Lt. Johnson what he did about
the episad was that he may have known there was an
investigation going on, and that this might have been found
out about in some otier way, and therefore he thought he
better get the infommition to the security officers himself.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. I apologize. Did you
mention Johnson's name in connection with that. I may have
thought I heard it. May I ask that it be re-read. I anm sorry.

MR. GRAY: Yes, you may ask. I am going to be
embarrassed when I read it in print. I might as well be
embarrased when 1 hear it read back now. It was a poor
question. Can you rezd it back?

THE WITNESS: I didn't mean to imply that.

MR. GRAY: There is no need to. I know it.
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(Question read by the reporter.)

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. GRAY: Is that the substance of what you said?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, and the gestion I think was
clearly put to me.

MR. GRAY: Now, if there had been only one person
involved in the Chevalier contact, that is, to Dr. Oppenheimer
himself, it is unlikely I suppose that you would have found
out about it, except from Dr. Oppenheimer.

THE WITNESS: That is right.

MR. GRAY: In other words, unless he had volunteered
this information to Lt. Johnson in the firét place, and repeated
it to you in the second place, this may never have been a
matter of discussion in a possible future hearing?

THE WITNESS: Of course, we cannot exclude the
possibility if the investigation took some other tangent
and that may have come out, but that is just a supposition.

MR. GRAY: But if the contact had been just between
Professor Chevalier and Dr. Oppenheimer in Dr. Oppenheimer's .
home, it is pretty unlikely that you would have known about
it except from Dr. Oppenheimer?

THE WITNESS: It is unlikely that we would know
about it, yes, sir. |

MR. GRAY: Did it occur to you, and if itdidn't,

I wish you would say so, that the fact that Dr. Oppenheimer
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in some detail mentioned two other people than the’individual
who later turned out tc be himself -~ I am not sure it was
two other people, |

THE WITNESS: It was three other people, sir.

DR. EVANS: Three other people.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

MR. GRAY: Let me rephrase my question. Did it
occur to you at the time that the fact that Dr. Oppenheimer
mentioned both to Lt. Johnson and to you.contacts with three
people for information, two of whom were supposed to be at.
Los Alamos and one of whqm was supposed soon to go to Oak
Ridge, that he was giving you this information thinking that
you possibly could find out aboﬁt these other three people?
I am afraid that is not a clear question. I am trying to
ask you whether it occurred to you at the time that he was
giving you the story of the contact because he felt that it
might be otherwise discoered, or that he was giving you the
story in this kind of detail because he felt these details
might be discovered?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. My impression was that he
felt that we would discover in our investigation the fact
that there were these contacts, and the extent of themn.

MR. GRAY: 1Is it true that he said he thought these
were innocent contacts, and therefore weren't worth pursuing

in his judgment? 1Is that correct?
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THEWITNESS: He said that, yes, sir. But the reasoh--

well, excusenme.
. MR. GRAY: You did, indeed, try to find out at least
.~ who the individual was who was scheduled to go to Oak Ridge?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, as I recall we did.

MR. GRAY: So that at the time you did believe that
people other than Dr. Oppenheimer himself were involved in this.

THE WITNESS: We didn't believe, sir?

MR. GRAY: You did believe.

THE WITNESS: We did believe. As a matter of fact,
we didn't know how many more contacts were made.

MR. GRAY: But in fact, younmever established that
there were any other contacts?

THE WITNESS: No, sir.

MR. GRAY: And the man whose orders you held up,
rwho had been scheduled for movement to Oak Ridge, turned out
in fact not to have been involved?

THE WITNESS: I hate to bring up a name at 8 sort
of very slim recollection, but to emphasize the point, I
believe, and in this instance I hope if I am mistaken it is
excusable, because I feel it was a man whom we had under

. : suspicion as one of the men who was a Communist Party méxhber
or associate, and on whom an investigaton was being run. Ve

had never established his contact with Chevalier.

MR. GRAY: Just for the clarification of the record,
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Colonel Pash, am I correct in thinking that after receiving
Eltenton's name from Dr. Oppenheimer your jurisdictioml
limitations would have prevented your investigating Mr.
. Eltenton,wkatever your inclinations might have been? 1Is that
correct?
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
MR. GRAY: And that this then became a function of
some other agency of government?
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
MR, GRAY: Did you communicate with the other agency
of government what you learned?
THE WITNESS: I did, sir, yes.
‘ MR, GRAY: Dr. Evans.
DR. EVANS: Colonel Pash, did you know Fuchs?
THE WITNESS: No, sir.
BR, EVANS: Did you know Greenglass?
THE WITNESS: No, sir. That happened in my absence.
DR. EVANS: Having been connected with a couple of
institutions of learding myself, not radiations laboratories,
of course, and not the high powered nuclear physics that was
going on here, I am surprised -- maybe I should not be --
. at the number of Communists and fellow travelers gathered
together at one point in this Radiation Labora tory. Did that
surprise you or is that just normal?

THE WITNESS: No, sir, that was a surprise. We did
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not expect it.

DR. EVANS: It is a surprise to me. I am still
concerned, and I don't understand these three men that Dr.
Oppenheimer mentioned, three contacts, is that correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

DR. EVANS: Did he mean there were three men
besides Chevalier who had approached him, or these other men
were approaching somebody else besides Dr. Oppenheimer?

THE WITNESS: No, sir, this unknown professor
contacted these three men, which proved to be Chevalier later.

DR. EVANS: He contacted Dr. Oppenheimer, and then
he contacted three other men?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

DR. EVANS: Possibly to get information from them.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir

DR. EVANS: I just wanted that clear for the record.
Maybe everybody understood it, but I didn't. You tried to find
out those other three men, didn't you?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, both from Dr. Oppenheimer
and through investigative procedures. |

DR, EVANS: That is all.

MR. GRAY: Mr. Silverman.

MR. SILVBRMAN: May #e take just a moment, sir?

MR. GRAY: Yes.

MR. SILVERMAN: I have no further questions.
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MR. ROBB: That is all. Thank you very much,

MR. GRAY: Thank you, Colonel Pash,

(Witness excused.)

MR. ROBB: For the record, I think counsel have
finally agreed upon the final definitive text of the Pash
interview.

MR. SILVERMAN: Yes, I understand they have.

MR. ROBB: I think that should be read into the
record when ﬁe get it typed up; and also I should like to
have the Lansdale interview read into the record.

MR. GARRISON: Mr. Chairman, we had previously
requested that it be read aloud. We waived that in the interest
of getting along.

| MR. SILVERMAN: Why doesn't the stenographer just
copy it.

MR. GRAY: Yes, it will just be copied into the
record.

(Brief recess.)

MR. GRAY: Do you wish to testify under oath?

MR. BORDEN: I would prefer to testify under oath.

MR. GRAY: Would you stand and raise your right hand.
Give your full name.

MR. BORDEN: My name is William Liscum Borden.

MR, GRAY: William Liscum Borden, do you swear that

the testimony you are to give the Board shall be the truth,
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the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you qu?
MR. BORDEN: I do.
Whereupon,
WILLIAM LISCUM BORDEN
was called as a witness, and having been first duly sworn,
was examined and testified as follows:

MR. GRAY: Will you be seated, please.

It is my duty, Mr. Borden, to remind you of the
existence of the so-called perjury statutes. May I assumé
you are familiar in general with them?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. GRAY: Also I should like to request that if
in the course of your testimony it becomes necessary for you
to refer to or to disclose restricted data or classified
material you notify me in advance so that we may take necessary
security measures.

Finally, Mr. Borden, I should say that we treat
these proceedings as a confidential matter between the Atomic
Energy Commission; its officials and witnesses on the one hand,
and Dr. Oppenheimer and his representatives on the other.
The Commission is making no releases with respect to these
'proceedings and on behalf of the Board, I express the hope
that witnesses will take the same view of the situation.

THE WITNESS: You may count on me to observe that

suggestion:. .
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MR. GRAY: Mr. Robb,
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ROBB:
Where do you live at present?
711 St. James Street, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.
What is your present occupation?

I work for the Westinghouse Electric Corporation in

its Atomic Power Division.

Q
A

What is your position?

My title is assistant to the manager of the Westinghouse

Atomic Power Division.

Q
A

¢

A

How long have you held that position?
Since July 1, 1953.
What are your duties?

I assist the manager of the division in planning

and coordinating matters, serve as his alter ego as to certain

designated matters which he stipulates.

Q

position?

A

Prior to your assuming that position, what wasyour

I was Executive Director of the Joint Committee on

Atomic Energy.

Q

A
Q
A

Of the United States Congress?
That is correct.
How long did you hold that position?

From the last days of January 1949 until about June 1,
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1953.

Did you have a staff serving with you?

I did.

Q

A

Q How many people?
A Approximately 19 or 20.

Q In general what was the scope of your work?

A It was the duty of the staff to collect facts
concerning the atomic energy program, and to make recommenda-
tions to the Chairman and members of the committee.

Q Prior to assuming those duties, what did you do?

A I was legislative secretary to Senator Brian McMahon
for about six months. I believe it was in the middle part of
1948 that I went to work for him.

Q What is your educational background?

A I hold an AB and LLB degree from Yale.

Q What dates?

A I got my AB in the spring of 1942, and my LLB in
September 1947. | |

Q Where were you in the interim?

A I was a pilot in the Army Air Force for three
years during the war.

Q Where?

A I served with the 8th U. S. Air Force based in
England.

(8] After you graduated from law school, you went where,
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with Sena tor McMahon?

A No, I went to the Office of Alien Property of
the Justice Department.

Q As an attorney?

A As an attorney, and I stayed there as I recall
from January of 1948 until mid 1948, when I went to work for
Senator McMahon.

Q In your capacity as executive director of the staff
of the Joint Committee, did you gie consideration to the
matter of Dr. J. Robert Oppenheimer?

A I did, yes. ’ .

Q Wjould you say yow gave much or little consideration
to Dr. Oppenheimer?

A I would say I gave increasing consideration over a
period yf years, Mr. Robb.

Q By the way, I might ask you, Mr. Borden, you are
appearing today in response to a subpoena?

A Thank you for giving me an opportunity of emphasizing
that a subpoena commanding me to appear here has been served
on me, and I testify under official compulsion.

Q As a result of your study of the matter of Dr.
Oppenheimer, did you reach certain conclusions in your mind
with respect to him?

A I did, yes.

Q Did there come a time when you expressed those
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conclusions in a letter to Mr. J. Edgar Hoover of the
Federal Bureau of Investigation?

A That is correct.

Q When was that?

A The letter was dated November 7, 1953.

Q Was that subsequent to the termination of your
connection with the Joint COmmitteeé

A That was, yes.

(o) Prior to writing that le tter, did you discuss the
writing of it with anybody connected with the Atomic Energy
Commission? |

A I did not.

0 Did you in that letter express your conclusions
with respect to Mr. J. Robert Oppenheimer?

A I did.

¢ Were those conclusions your own conclusions?

A They are.

Q Were they your honest conclusions arrived at after
great thought?

A That is correct.

4] Are they still your conclusions?

A They are.

o Do you have a copy of your letter with you?

A I have one in front of me.

Q Would you be good enough to read it?
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A This letter is dated November 7, 1953.
o #hile our friends are looking at that, I might ask
you whether you know Dr. Oppenheimer personally?
A I have met him on a few occasions.

MR. ROBB: May we proceed, M:. Chairman?

MR. SILVERMAN: One moment, please.

MR, GRAY: I would like to ask the counsel what thq
purpose of delay is. He is simply going to rea& this.

MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. éhairman, I can hardly conceive
that a letter, with due respect to Mr. Borden, by a gentleman
stating what he adds the evidence up to can be enormously help-
ful to the Board which has itself heard the evidence. There
are statements in this letter, at least one that 1 see,
which I don't think anybody would be very happy to have
go into tis record, and under those circumstances, I would |
like to look at it a minute longer . There may be serious
question whether anybody will be bhelped by having this letter
in the record.

MR. GRAY: I think you are now raising a question
that counsel cannot determine, Mr. Siiverman.

MR. SILVERMAN: Of course not, sir.

MR. GRAY: If you have any argument about it,

I shall be glad to have it. If you wish to protest the
reading of the le tter into the record, you are certainly at

liberty to do so. I take it, however, that it is evident
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that Mr. Borden is before the committee, he states that this

letter is his own letter, he wrote it without consultation
with the Commission, that it represents the views he held in
November 1953, it represents the views he holds today, he is
the individual concerned, he is being confronted by Dr.
Oppenﬁeimer and Oppenheimer's cﬁunséu and will be available
for cross examination. In view of the fact that being here as
he is under subpoena, which has been made clear, presumably
this being his opinion, this is what he would tes tify to.

I simply don't see the objection to reading the letter. If
I am wrong about that, I should be glad to hear it.

| MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. Chairman, much of the material
in this letter, or some of the material in this letter, at
least, is matter that has already been before the Board.

MR, GRAY: Mr. Silverman, you are not suggesting
that we should not hear from any witnesses who will testify
to the samematters.previous'witheéses have testified to?

MR. SILVERMAN: let me say it this way. The thing
that struck my eye at once is subdivision (e) on page 2.
That treubles me going into the record. If you think it
will advance things to have it in, all right.

MR. GRAY: I would like to take a moment to considr
that objection. |

MR. GARRISON: Mr. Chairman, the third paragraph

on page 4, and some comparable material brings in accusations
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here that have not before been made in this record or even
indicated in the Commission's letter.

MR. GRAY: You are referring to what?

MR. GARRISON: To the third peagraph on page 4,
and to the first clause on page 4, and also the last clause
on page 3.

MR. GRAY: Mr. Garrison, is there any queétion in
your mind that if this is the view of the witmss, he would
not so testify?

MR. GARRISON: I have no question about that.

MR. GRAY: I am puzzled by the objection to his
reading the letter he wrote in November 1953, which he states
nov represents his present views as distinguished from giving
his present views at this time. I am just honestly not clear
as to what #2 objection is.

MR. GARRION: It is simply my feeling, Mr.Chairman,
that if these represent his present viewss, and the
Commission's counsel has brought him hereto testify to this
Board about accusations which are not in the Commission's
letter and are not even suggested in them, and have never
before been suggested in these proceedings, we now have a new
case which it seems to me either does not belong here or
should be included in thé Commission's letter, either ;n the
first instance or by amendment.

MR. GRAY: 1I think now you are making a point that
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the Board should examine, and specifically in that-case you
reier to material on page 4, is thathcorrect?
. MR. GARRISON: That is correct and on the'bottom

of page 3 ‘and the first sentence at the top of page 2.

MR GRAY: I repeat you ‘are making a point which you
.are entitled to have constﬁered by the Board; that was certainly
not clear to me from anything Mr.Silverman said earlier.'

I would teenefore ask everyone to retire from the
room except the Bosrc‘end counsel for the Board.

ii (a11 persons:with the exception of the Board and.%

counsel"fon the Board‘ieft the hearing room, and after a
brief time'ne-entered the room.)

MR. GRAY: In response to the objection raised by
counsel for Dr’ Opnenheimer,'l would nave this to say m
behalf of the Board:

No. 1, the material which the ﬁtness was about to
read constitutes testimony by the witness, and does not

becore a part of the letter of notification from the General

Manager of the Commission to Dr. Oppenheimer.? I would remind
counsel that under the regulations pursnant to which this
proceeding is oonducted the requiements are that this Board
makes specific findings with respect to the items in the -
letter of notification.

I should also remind counsel that much of the

testimony here given has not necessarily reflected either
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items in the letter of the General Manager of The Dommission
to Dr. Cppenheimer,or Dr. Oppenheimer's reply to that letter.
With the exception of the personal items referred to on page 2,
and I will have something to say to the witness about that,
the material as I understand it specifically referred to by
Mr . Garrison is stated as a conclusion of the author of the
letter. Again I tale it that the witness would be permitted
to present his conclusion about matters which are before this
Board. VWitnesses have done so with constancy throughout this
proceeding. Therefore, after consultation with the members
of the Board, the witness will be allowed to read this letter,
and all concerned will understand that this is a part of his
testimony which is not necessarily accepted by the Commission,
deoes not become a part of the Commission's letter of
notification, nor are the conclusions drawn in the testimony
necessarily to be considered accepted by the Board. It is the
corc lusion of the witness, one of many whom we have had before
the Board, with respect to matters concerned in this
proceeding.

MR. GARRISON: May I ask &he Chairman a question?

MR, GRAY: Yes, you certainly may.

MR. GARRISON: 1Is it the opinion of the Board fhat
the matters which I identified by paragraph and page numhers--

DR, EVANS: What page is that?

MR. GARRISON: The passages to which 1 previously
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directed your attention. Is it the opinion of the Board
that those are matters into which inqdiry should be directed?
MR. GRAY: These are.conclusions drawn by a witness
with respect to material I think all of which in one way or
another has been touched upon in testimony before the Board.
MR. GARRISON: The conclusions that are here stated,
Mr. Chairman, that I referred to, refer to entirely new
topics sc far as this procéeding and the letter is concerned
about which there has not been one breath in this record. I
take it that the rule fram which Iam reading paragraph (j)
of section 4.15 is for the protection of the individual.
Being for the protection of the individual, it is not likely
to be disregarded, because the purpcse of this is to
give full notice of the individual. If we are to be tried
here upon the subject matter of these conclusions, this is
something that belongs in the criminal courts and not heré.
But if it must be heard here, then there should be notice of it.
MR, GRAY: I wuld say to counsel that it is not
my understanding from conversations with the Board that
testimony of this witness is in an& way going to broaden the
inquiry of the Board.
MR. GARRISON: How can it avoid it, sir? Supposing
you should believe the witness? Here is a witness praliced
by counsel engaged by the Commission and delegated with the

responsibility by this Board of calling such witnesses as he
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wishes, and he brings 2 witness in to meke this kind of aan
accusatiocon not dreamed of in this proceeding up to this point,
and not wentioned inthe letter. 1 think If anything could be
more of a surprise and more calling for time, if this is to
e the suhject matter of the inguiry, I don't know what it is.

¥R, GRAY: 1 should like to ask, Mr. Garrison,
whe ther you knew of the existence of this letter?y

IiR. GARRISON: I had heard romorrs that Mr. Bevdén
had written a letter, yes, sir. I had no notion that this
Rind of mfiterial was in it.

MR. GRAY: This is a corclusilon of a witnese that
you are speaking to now,

MR, GARRISON: Yes, but I take it you are goiang to
nermit the witness to zdduce his evidence upon these
topics. Otherwise, there is no point of his readirg the
letter unlms he is going to testify about it.

I wounld suggest, Mr. Chaiiman, I don't wvart to delay
the procecding -~

MR, GBAY: The Board is very swmeh concerned with
omrotecting the interests of the individual concerned, the
government and the general pablic, o that I do not consider
this discussion a matter of delay.

MR. ROBB: Mr. Chaivman, wmight I suggest one thing?
I assume that in the event the witness should be asked whether

or nct upon the basis of the evidence he has considered that




2346
Le considers Dr. Oppenheimer a security risk, and he should
say that he did, and should then be asked to give his reascns,
he might very well give the reasoms that he set forth in this
letter under conclusions. I can't see much difference. I
think it would not be contended the scope of the inquiry is
thereby broadened or would be thereby brcadened.

MR, GARRISON: Mr. Robb is making a point of form
and net of sﬁbstance, Mr. Chairmar. We are here put on
notice in advance ~- this is the conly way in which it happens
to come up -~ that this witness proposes to make accusations
of a new character not touched upon in the letter, and not
sugges ted before in these proceedings hy anybody, even by
the mcst vigorous critics of Dr. Cprenheimer. |

MR. ROBB: Mr. Chairman, might I say one thing for
the record?v The witness wrote this letter on his own initiative
and his own responsibility, setting out certain matters qf
evidence, I think all of which, if not all, certainly mos+
all of whibh, are mentioned in the letter from General Nichols
to Dr. Oppenheimer. This 1etter was to Mr. Hoovar. The
letter iz a part of the files before the Board. E is; I think,
an important letter. It seemed to the Commission, it seems
e us, that under those circumstances it was only fair to
Dr. Opperheimer and his counsel that this witness should be

presented here, confronted by Dr. Oppenheimer, and his counsel,

subjected to cross examinationon the matters set cut in thiis
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letter.

The donclusions drawn by this witnessvin his letter
are not allegationé in the letter fram General Nichols to
Dr. Oppenheimer. They will not be allegations in any possible
amendment of that letter. The conclusions are the conclusionus
of the witness alone. They are conclusions which he has drawn
from the evidence just as other witnesses bn behalf of Dr.
Oppenheimer have drawn the conclusion that Dr. Oppenheimer is
not a security risk, but on the contrary is a man of great
honesty, integrity and patriotism,

I assume that if the witness having written this
letter had concluded from the evidence set out by him that
Dr. Oppenheimer was not a security risk, that he was a splendid
American, a man of honor, that Mr., Garrison would have no
objection to reading those conclusions. It seems to me it
cuts both ways, Mr. Chairman.

MR. GARRISON: May I ask how long the Commission
has had this letter in its file?

MR. ROBB: I don't know, Mr. Garrison. Some time,

of course.

MR. GARRISON: Did it have it prior to the letter of
December 23, 19537 |

MR, ROBB: Mr. Garrison, I don't think I slbuld be
subjected to cross examination by you, but I can say to you

that I am sure Mr. Hoover did not weit eight months to send it
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over to the Comnmission.

l\ﬁR. GARRISON: Mr. Chirman, at the bottom of page 3,
it says, "From such evidence considered in detail the following
conclusions are justified." You can call them conclusions
or allegations; it is all the same thing.

MR. GRAY: This is simply the testimony of a witness.

MR. GARRISON: This is the testimony of a witness
produced by the Commission's counsel to whom this task has been
delegated, on his own responsibility bringing in here to make
accusations of the kind that I don't think belong here.

MR. GRAY: I will state to counsel for Dr. Oppenheimer
. that copies of this letter have been in the possession of the
Board along withall other material and have been read by
members of this Board. Mr. Borden's conclusions are therefore
known to the members of this Board. The Board has certainly
-made no suggestion to the Commission and the General Manager
of the Commission has not otherwise taken the initiative to
broaden the inquiry to include these stated conclusions of
the witness. Ifyou prefer not to have Dr. Oppenheimer
confronted by a witness and cross examined hy his counsel
with respect to material which you know is in the p«~session
of the Board, of course that would be your decision in whaf
you sonsider to be the best protection of the interests of

Dr. Oppenheimer.

I gather that is what you are saying, because you
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have been informed by the Chairman that a copy of this

letter is in the possession of the members of the Board.

That, again, if I need to repeat this, doeé not in any way
indicate that it is anything more than one part of material
consisting of a record which is to be thousands of pages long,
and various other data voluminous in nature which are before
this Board. You may not assume that any of the conclusions
of ahy of the witnesses may necessarily be those of the Board.
As far as this Board is concerned -- I hope I may speak for
my colleagues -- I do not thidk we will imsist on either
direct or cross examination of this witness. The comdusion
which we had re;ched in the period during which you were
excused from the room was that we would proceed. However, I
shall be glad to consult further wi th the members of the
Board to determine whethexr we shall proceed with the
introduction of this letter.

I take it that counsel would not»object to direct
examination of this witness? You are not objecting to the
witness?

MR. GARRISON: No.

MR. GRAY: Mr. Morgan has just observed‘to me that
he felt that it was the fairest thing to Dr. Oppenheimer to
give him and his counsel the opportunity to examine the
witness with respect to this letter which was in the possession

of the Board. He doesn't insist that we proceed. I have not
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- yet consulted Dr. Evans.

DR. EVANS: That is all right with me.

MR. GARRISON: Mr. Chairman, it is needless to say
that we would much rather have an opportunity to cros; examine
if the Board considers that this topic is properly a part of
the case. If the Board considers that it is, then let us
proceed with it. I trust that in view of the circuﬁstances
if it be your decision to proceed, that to the extent that we
need time here to prepare on this new kind of an allegation,
that we may have it.

MR. GRAY: Yes.

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. GARRISON: Mr. Chaimman, with respect to the
objection previously raised by Mr. Silverﬁan, we withdraw
that objection and prefer that the letter in its entirety
be read, if we are to go ahead with it.

MR. GRAY: All right, sir.

THE WITNESS: This letter is dated November 7, 1943.
A copy went to the Joint Committee on Atomic Energy. The
original went to Mr. J. Edgar Hoover, Director, Federal Bureau
of Investigation, Washington, D. C.

"Dear Mr. Hoover:

"This letter concerns J. Robert Oppenheimer.

"As'you know, he has for some years enjoyed access

to various critical activities of the National Security Council,
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the Department of State, the Department of Defemse, the Army,
Navy, and Air Force, the Research and Development Board, the
Atomic Energy Commission, the Central Intelligence Agency,
the National Security Resources Board, and the National Science
Foundation. His access covers most new weapons being
developed by the armed forces, war plans at least in comprehens-
ive outline, complete details as to atomic and hydrogen
weapons and stockpile data, the evidence on which some' of the
principal CiA intélligence estimates is based, United States
participation in the United Nations and NATO and many other
areas of high security sansitivity.

""Because obhe scope of his access may well be unique,
because he has had custody of an immense collection of
classified paper,'--

DR. EVANS: Documents. You said papers.

THE WITNESS: That is right. Perhaps I should state
that the copy I have before me is one that I typed myself,
and it is possible that it does not conform.

"Because the scope of his access may well be unique,
because he has had custody of an immense collection of
classified papers covering military, intelligence, and
diplomatic as well as atomic energy mmtters, and because he
also possesses a scientific background enabling him to grasp

the significance of classified data of a technical nature, it

seems reasonable to estimate that he is and for some years
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has been in a position to compromise more vital and detailed
information affecting the national defense and security than
any other individual in the United States.

"While J. Robert Oppenheimer has not made smjor
contributions tothe advancement of science; he holds a respected
professional standing among the second rank of American
physicists. In terms of his mastery of government affairs,
his close liaison with ranking officials, and his ability to
influence high-levél thinking, he surely stands in the first
rank, not merely among scientists but among all those who have
shaped post-war decisions in the military, atomic energy,
intelligence, and diplomatic fields. As chairman or as an
official or unofficial member of more than thirty-five
important government commiftees, panels, study groups, and
projects, he has oriented or dominated key policies involving
every pincipal United States security department and agency
except the FBI.

"The purpose of this letter is to state my own
exhaustively considered opinion, based upon years of study,
of the available classified evidence, that more probably than
not J. Robert Oppenheimer is an agent of thé Soviet Union.

"This opinion considers the following factoxrs, among
others:

{a) He was contributing substantial monthly sums

to the Commuunist Party;
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"(b) His ties withCommunism had survived the Nazi;
Soviet Pact and the Soviet attack upon Finland;
"{(c) His wife and younger brother were Communists;
"(d) He had no close friends except Communists;
"(d) He had at least onme Communist mistress;
"(£f) He belonged only to Communist organizations,
apart from professional affiliations;
"(g) The people whom he recruited into the early
wartime Berkeley stomic project were exclusively Communists:
"(h) He had been instrumental in securing recruits
for the Communist Party; and
"(3) He was in frequent contact with Soviet espionage
agents.
"2. The evidence indicating that
"(a) In May, 1942, he either stopped amtribu ting
funds to the Communist Party or else made his contributions
through a new channel not yet discovered;
"(b) 1In April, 1942 his name was formally submitted
for security clearance;
"(c) He himself was aware at the time that his
name had been so submitted; and
"(d) He thereafter repeatedly gave false information
to General Groves, the Manhattan District, and the FBI
concering the 1939-April, 1942 period.

"3. The evidence indicating that
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"(a) He was resbbnsible for employing a number of
Communists, some of them non-technical, at wartime Los Alamos;

"(b) He selected one such individual o write the
official Los Alamos history;

"(c) He was a figorous supporter of the H-bomb
program until August 6, 1945 (Hiroshima), on which day he
personally urged each senior individual working in this field
to desist; and

"'(d) He was an enthusiastic sponsor of the A-bomb
program until the waf ended, when he immediately and outspokenly
advocated that the Los Alamos laboratory be disbanded.

"4, The evidence indicating that

"(a) He was remarkably instrumentgl in influencing
the military authorities and the Atomic Energy Commission
essentially to suspend H-bomb development from mid-1946
through January 31, 1950. ’

"(b) He has worked tirelessly, from January 31, 1950
onward, to retard the United States H-bomb program;

"(c) He has used his potent influence against every
post-war effort to expand capacity for producing A-bomb
material;

"(d) He has used his potent influence against every
post-war effort directed at obtaining larger supplies of
uranium raw material; and

"(e) He has used his potent influence against every
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major post-war toward atomic power development, including
the nuclear-powered submarine and aircraft programs as well as
industrial power projects;

From such evidence, considered- in detail, the
following conclusions are justified:

"1, Between 1939 and mid-1942, more probably than
not, J. Robert Oppenheimer was a suffigiently hardened
Communis t that he either volunteered espionage information to
the Soviets or complied with a request for such information.
(This includes the possibility that when he singled out the
weapons aspect of atomic development as his personal
specialty, he was acting under Soviet instuctions.)

"2, More probably than not, he has since been
functioning as an espionage agent; and

"3. More probably than not, he has since acted under
a Soviet directive in influencing United States military,
atomic energy, inteligence, and diplomatic poiicy.

"It is to be noted that these conclusions correlate
with information furnished by Klaus Fuchs, indicating that the
Soviets had acquired an agent in Berkeley who informed them
about electromagnetic separation researh dur ing 1942 or eariier.

"Needless to say, I appreciate the probabilities
identifiable fror existing evidence might, with review of future
acquired evidemce, be reduced to possibilities; or they might

also be increased to certainties. The central problem is not




2856

whether J. Robert Oppenheimer was ever a Communist; for the
existing evidence makes abundantly clear that he was. Even

an Atomic Energy Commission analysis prepared in early 1947
reflects this conclusion, although some of the most significant
derogatory data had yet bo become»avaiiable. The central
problem is assessing the degree of likelihood that he in fact
did what & Communisf‘in his circumstances, at Berkeley,

would logically have done during the crucial 193 -1942 period --
that is, whether he became an actual espionage and policy
instrument of the Soviets. Tbu;, as to this central problen,
my opinion is that, more probably than not, the worst is in
fact the truth.

"I am profoundly aware of the grave nature of these
comments. The matter is detestable to me. Having lived with
the Oppehheimer case for years, having studied and restudied
all data concerning him that your agency made available to
the Atomic Energy Commission through May, 1953, having
endeavored to factor in a mass of additional data assembled
from numerous other sources,and looking back upon the case
from a perspective in private life, I feel a duty simply to
state to the responsible head of the security agency most
concerned the conclusions which I have painfully crystalized
and which I believe any fair-minded man thoroughly familiar
with the evidence must also be driven to accept.

"The writing of this letter, to me a solemn step,




ies exclusively on my own personal initiative -
"Very truly yours" signed "Willj)

"William’L. Borden, "

MR. ROLANDER: Mr. Cﬂairman, I had cop.
letter made, and Mr. Borden read from the copies, and .
tﬁink there is one error in the copy that he read. That begx\
where the letter says, "This opinion considers the following
factors among others (1) The ebidence indicating that as of
April of 1942" and then it proceeds.

MR, SILVERMAN: Indicating that as of what date?

MR, ROLANDER: '"'This opinipn considers the following
factors, among others:

"l. The evidence indicating that as of April 1942
(a)."

MR. GRAY: Now, I should like to male a statement
with respect to this letter which I am authorized to make by
the two other members of the Board which I think may ease Mr.
Garrison's problem as he has seen it in this discussion.

I would say to you that the Board has no evidence

before it that Dr. Oppenheimer volunteered espionage

information to the Soviets or complied with a request for

such information; that he has been functipning as an espionage
agent or that he has since acted under Soviet directive, wikth
one qualifiéation as to that latter point, which I am sure will

not surprise you. That is, there has been testimony by
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various witnesses as to whether members of the Communist Party,
as a matter of policy at the time of the war years or
entering into government or military service, complied with
policy or policy directions in that regard. With :espect to
that qualification, which I believe appears already in the
record, and which is certainly no surprise to Dr. Oppenheimer
and his counsel, I repeat that the members of the Board
feel that they have no evidence before them With respect to
these matters which I have just recited.

I repeat, therefore, that there are now before the
Board in the nature of conclusions of the witness, stated to
be his own conclusions on the basis of other material which
is set forth in some detail, and I believe practically all
of which has been referred to without making a judgment
whether it has been established or not.

MR. ROBB: May I proceed?

MR. GRAY: Yes.

BY MR. ROBB:

Q M». Bordon, may I ask you, sir, vy you waited
until you left the Joint Committee to write that letter?

A Mr. Robb, this case has concerned me over a period
of years. My concern has increased as time passed. Several
actions were takem with respect to it while I was working
for the Joint Committee. It has consisted im the preparation

of 400 questions raised on the case. This was the final work
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that I performed before leaving the Committee. I felt at
that time that I had not previously fully measured up to my
duty on this matter. As of the time I left, the
preparation of those questions constituted for me the discharge
of the duty. However, no position was taken in the fom ulation
of those questions, or at least if éhere was a position, it
was implicit only.

After I left, I took a month off and this matter
pressed on my mind. The feeling grew upon me that I had not
fully discharged what wes required of me in view of the fact
that I had not taken a position.

Accordingly, by aprroximately mid-October, I had
crystalized my thinking to the point where I felt that this
step was necessary. There is a letter which I have written
to the Joint Committee on this subject, if you wish me to
refer to it, or to read it to you.

Q Is there anything, Mr. Borden, that you can now
add to what you have set out in this letter as your
conclusions?

A I have no desire to add anything.

Q I am not asking you that, sir. Is there anything
that you feel that is appropriate for you to tell this Board
in addition to what you have set out in that letter?

A I feel, Mr. Robb, that it is my obvious duty to

answer any questions that are asked me. If I were to volunteer
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information, I think it is obvious that I could talk over a
long period of time.

Q I am not asking you to volunteer, but what I want
to know is, does that letter fully state your conclusions?

A This letter reflects my conclusions as of now.

Q Does it fully reflect your conclusions?

A Yes.

Q So there is nothing that you feel you should add to it?

A That is correct. Perhaps I misunderstood you.

Q lLet me see whether or not you feel anyhesitation
about answering any questions that either have been or may be
put to you here, because of the presence of Dr. Oppenheimer
and his counsel. |

A I do not.

Q The answer is no?

A The answer is no.

MR, ROBB: I think thatis all I care to ask. You
may cross examine.

MR, GRAY: We will now take a recess until Monday at
2 o'clock for many reasons. One is commitments identified with
this enterprise as to schedule. Second, I think it is useful
if time is required for Mr. Garrison. I would hope that my
statement that I made to the Board takes care of most of the
difficulties that we discussed. |

MR. GARRISON: Is it to be understood that the
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witness will be back here on Monday?

MR, GRAY: The witness is under subpoena, and he
is not hapoy to be here in the first place. It is understood
that he will be.

We are now in recess until Monday at 2 o'clock.

(Thereupon at 4:30 p.m., a recess was taken until

Monday, May 3, 1954, at 2:00 o'clock p.m.)






